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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBERE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

mERA

For the year ended 30 June

BEAAZTHLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

—B--f —T-THF —TNF T N\F —TtF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FEr FET FET

Revenue Wiz 380,090 311,835 282,037 270,195 302,987

Income tax expense FremiFs 15,950 8,897 8,754 6,429 11,097

Profit for the year F A 77,832 44,853 32,252 9,017 36,781

Profit for the year attributable to P/NCTE 2N
owners of the Company e F = 77,832 44,853 32,252 9,017 36,781
As at 30 June
RAB=1+H

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

—T-—f —T-TF —T-NF ZE-N\F ZZT—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET

Total assets BEE 490,208 410,827 341,924 335,498 190,241

Total liabilities meE 104,930 87,710 42,710 45,808 62,976
Equity attributable to RARRERBA

equity holders of the Company e 385,278 323,117 299,214 289,690 127,265
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

The year 2020/2021 was continuing to be a challenging year, and Sun
Hing Printing Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to the “Group”) are still exposing to several
market challenges and uncertainties, such as the continuous impact
of COVID-19 pandemic on national lockdown and travel restriction,
ongoing trade dispute between the United States of America (the
“USA") and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), and pessimistic
economy sentiment in Hong Kong.

Although the abovementioned factors do not directly discourage the
financial performance to our Group, they pose challenges to most
sectors in Hong Kong by undermining investment and business
environment. Furthermore, the outbreak of the COVID-19 is aggravating
global economy and has changed the consumers’ behaviour around
the world.

The Group’s 2020/2021 profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company recorded the historical high to HK$77.8 million (2019/2020:
HK$44.9 million). The increase in the profit was mainly attributable
to some customers resuming their projects previously postponed by
COVID-19 pandemic, and the Group adopted stringent cost control
policies during the year. Basic eamnings per share was HK16.22 cents
(2019/2020: HK9.34 cents). The Company has proposed a final
dividend of HK4.0 cents (2019/2020: HK3.5 cents). Together with
interim dividend of HK1.5 cent (2019/2020: HK1.0 cent), the Company
has proposed a total dividend of HK5.5 cents (2019/2020: total
dividend of HK4.5 cents), which the Group intended to maintain a stable
dividend return to reward our shareholders of the Group and to reflect
our confidence in our strong financial performance.

Looking forward to the Year 2021/2022, disregarding the encouraging
result we achieved in the Year 2020/2021, the market is still full
of challenges and uncertainties. Under the continuous threat from
COVID-19 pandemic and Sino-US trade tension, worldwide economy is
still volatile. The Group will continue to maintain its stringent cost control
measures, to enhance the Group’s overall production efficiency and to
maintain its competitiveness in the market.
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In addition, the Group will further devote resources and manpower
to boost internal operation effectiveness, and will grasp opportunities
arising from potential new markets, such as environmental friendly
packaging market for sustainable growth. While we are also proactively
looking into the market for the latest printing associated technologies,
advanced machinery and innovative materials, to provide value-added
services to our customers and to differentiate ourselves from our
competitors.

Last but not least, employees are the greatest asset to the Group, we
will persist in providing training to our employees, in order to facilitate the
upcoming development of the Group.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to
our shareholders, investors, business partners, management and all the
staff members for their increasing support and dedication to the Group.
We will continue to provide the market with innovative, reliable and high-
quality printing products to our customers, and to drive the Group’s
business development in the long term. We believe these will empower
us to achieve a better performance and create greater value for our
customers, investors and shareholders.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 29 September 2021
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FOCUS

ON PAPER-RELATED PRINTING PRODUCTS
E R REI R RS E

Products are mainly used in the markets of various consumer products

as well as for the purposes of promotion, advertising and education.
BRMNERRERREZ  ERTRKNEEERTS
URANREE  BERBESAHZE -




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE DN

REVIEW OF OPERATION

Sun Hing Printing Holdings Group is a one-stop printing service
provider. Our printing services can be broadly categorised into (i)
packaging printing services which cover, among others, corrugated
boxes, gift boxes, card boxes and product boxes; (i) paper gift set
printing services which cover, among others, gift sets containing gift
boxes, cards, booklets and hardback books; (i) card printing services
which cover, among others, colour cards, insert cards, warranty
cards and plain cards; (iv) smart package printing services which
cover, among others, Near-field communications (‘NFC”) tags, Radio-
frequency Identification (“RFID”) labels and Real QR code; and (v) other
printing services which cover, among others, stickers, colour papers,
yupo papers and red packets.

Given the unstable economic environment, printing industry in Hong
Kong is encountering intense competition. The COVID-19 global
pandemic has continuously clouded the economic landscape of
worldwide. Corresponding measures, such as lockdown of many
nations and cities, have encumbered not just specific areas but global
economy. Furthermore, the Sino-US trade tension is still threatening
customers’ willingness to spend on printing and promotion. The
abovementioned factors are repeatedly challenging the Group's
business operations and development.
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REVIEW OF OPERATION (Conin

The Group's revenue increased by apprommately 21.9% to
approximately HK$380.1 million for the year ended 30 June 2021
compared to last year. The increase in the Group’s revenue is mainly
due to the increase in contribution from packaging and paper gift set
printing services as a result of resumption of the projects by some
customers, which were postponed by the COVID-19 pandemic last
year, and more revenue generated by some projects as compared to
the revenue level prior to the COVID-19 pandemic. The gross profit
also increased by approximately 32.1% from approximately HK$114.7
million for the year ended 30 June 2020 to approximately HK$151.5
million for the year ended 30 June 2021, as a result of the increase in
revenue and the stringent cost control adopted by the Group.

With the increase in revenue and the stringent cost control adopted,
our gross profit margin also increase from approximately 36.8% during
the year ended 30 June 2020 to approximately 39.9% during the year
ended 30 June 2021. Our profit for the year increased by approximately
HK$32.9 million from approximately HK$44.9 million for the year ended
30 June 2020 to approximately HK$77.8 million for the year ended
30 June 2021, as a result of the resumption of the projects by some
customers, which were postponed by the COVID-19 pandemic last
year and the stringent cost control policies placed by management.
The net profit margin increased from approximately 14.4% for the year
ended 30 June 2020 to approximately 20.5% for the year ended 30
June 2021.

Basic eamnings per share for the year ended 30 June 2021 was
HK16.22 cents, compared to a basic eamings per share of HK9.34
cents for the year ended 30 June 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWmE D

BUSINESS UNIT OVERVIEW EKEBENHE
The Group comprises five key business units (2020: five). AEEAAE(ZZ =24 AE) = EXEHSM0AE
B o

Revenue contribution for the year ended 30 June 2021

BE-E-_—FXRA=THLEENRSZER

2.5%

10.3%

Package Printing &2 E1 |

Paper Gift Set Printing 4% S5 ENfR|
Card Printing %5 & ENfRI

Smart Package Printing %5 4%/ % ENf
Other Printing £t ENfI

31.5%

52.5%

Revenue contribution for the year ended 30 June 2020

BE-ZE-_EFAA=THILEENRSZER

3.7%

4.6%

10.9%

Package Printing £22£ E[J 7

Paper Gift Set Printing 4512 &2 N
Card Printing %1 k£ E1

Smart Package Printing %5 8% £ ¢ ENffl]
Other Printing E  EN

20.1%

60.7%
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BUSINESS UNIT OVERVIEW (Continued)
Packaging printing

Packaging printing services cover, among others, corrugated boxes,
gift boxes, card boxes and product boxes. For the year ended 30 June
2021, revenue from packaging printing increased by approximately
5.5% to approximately HK$199.8 million as compared to approximately
HK$189.3 million for the year ended 30 June 2020. The increase in
revenue from packaging printing was mainly because some customers
resumed their projects which were postponed by the COVID-19
pandemic last year and thus the Group received more orders on
packaging printing.

Paper gift set printing

Paper gift set printing services cover, among others, gift sets containing
gift boxes, cards, booklets and hardback books. For the year ended
30 June 2021, revenue from paper gift set printing increased by
approximately 90.6% to approximately HK$119.6 milion as compared
to approximately HK$62.7 million for the year ended 30 June 2020.
The increase in revenue from paper gift set printing was mainly due to
increasing customers orders received on paper gift set printing and
some customers have also organized promotional sales on paper gift
set printing products.

Card printing

Card printing services cover, among others, colour cards, insert cards,
warranty cards and plain cards. For the year ended 30 June 2021,
revenue from card printing increased by approximately 15.4% to
approximately HK$39.2 milion as compared to 2020. The increase in
revenue from card printing was mainly due to some new board games
and new household products were launched during the year, leading to
customers ordering more card printing services.

Smart package printing

Smart package printing services cover, among others, RFID labels
and NFC tags, in order to provide value-added services to our existing
and potential customers. For the year ended 30 June 2021, revenue
from smart package printing decreased by approximately 16.2% to
approximately HK$12.0 million as compared to 2020. The decrease in
revenue from smart package printing was mainly because of continuous
effect of COVID-19 pandemic on the retail markets in USA and Hong
Kong, which led to a drop in the customers’ orders in smart package
printing products.

Other printing

Other printing services cover, among others, stickers, colour papers,
yupo papers and red packets. For the year ended 30 June 2021,
revenue from other printing decreased by approximately 17.0% to
approximately HK$9.5 million as compared to 2020. The decrease
was mainly due to the increasing environmental awareness of some
retail customers and some countries imposing more restrictive rules on
plastics products.
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OUTLOOK

The year 2020/2021 was challenging due to influence of COVID-19
pandemic and trade tension between USA and China. Furthermore,
volatility of material costs, increase in labor costs, and imposition of
various stringent environmental control required by different countries
and cities on printing industry are posing additional challenges to the
Group’s business operations and growth in the foreseeable future.

To manage the impacts of COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has taken
several measures, such as providing face masks and hand sanitizers,
strict measures on body temperature checking and maintaining the
social distance inside the factory area, to secure the health and
safety of our staffs and to ensure the smooth operation of the Group.
Moreover, to cope with faling demand from our customers, and to
maintain the market competitiveness of the Group, the management
has adopted various steps to mitigate the Group’s operational risk,
such as a stringent control over our manufacturing costs in order to
make our printing products to be more competitive in the market and
be cautious on the pricing of our printing products. In addition, our
Group is exploring opportunities on promotion of our smart package
and sustainable products to our customers, which can differentiate
ourselves from our competitors. With the Group’s experienced
management team and reputation in the printing industry, our
management believes the Group is well-equipped to deal with the
forthcoming challenges and to maintain sustainable growth.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately 21.9% to
approximately HK$380.1 million for the year ended 30 June 2027
compared to approximately HK$311.8 million for the year ended
30 June 2020. The increase of the revenue is mainly due to higher
contribution from packaging and paper gift set printing as a result of the
resumption of the projects by some customers, which were postponed
by the COVID-19 pandemic last year, and more revenue generated
by some projects as compared to the revenue level before COVID-19
pandemic.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit increased by approximately 32.1% from approximately
HK$114.7 million for the year ended 30 June 2020 to approximately
HK$151.5 million for the year ended 30 June 2021, as a result of
the increase in revenue and the stringent cost control adopted by the
Group.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin (Continued)
With increase in revenue and the stringent cost control adopted, our
gross profit margin increased from approximately 36.8% during the year
ended 30 June 2020 to approximately 39.9% during the year ended 30
June 2021.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses remained relatively stable of approximately
HK$61.3 million and HK$60.0 milion for the years ended 30 June 2021
and 2020.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses remained relatively stable of
approximately HK$5.3 million and approximately HK$5.1 million for
the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020, which mainly included
salaries and freight charges. Given the increase in revenue, selling and
distribution expenses did not increase in a similar magnitude mainly
because the Group has adopted the better cost control and planning on
the routes in order to save selling and distribution expenses.

Other operating income, net

The Group recorded other operating income, net of approximately
HK$4.2 million and approximately HK$0.6 million for the years ended
30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020. The increase was mainly due to the
exchange gain arising from the appreciation of Renminbi against Hong
Kong Dollars on the time deposits denominated in Renminbi.

Other income and government grants

Other income and government grants was approximately HK$5.1 million
for the year ended 30 June 2020 and increased to approximately
HK$5.6 million for the year ended 30 June 2021. The increase in the
amount was mainly due to more government grants received from the
Employment Support Scheme of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and the technological transformation
scheme of the Shenzhen Industrial and Information Technology Bureau
of the PRC Government.

Income tax expense
Income tax expense increased by approximately HK$7.1 million from
approximately HK$8.9 million for the year ended 30 June 2020 to
approximately HK$16.0 million for the year ended 30 June 2021. The
effective tax rates for the year ended 30 June 2021 and 2020 are
17.0% and 16.6%, respectively.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continue

Liquidity and capital resources

Our net assets amounted to approximately HK$385.3 million and
approximately HK$323.1 million as at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020
respectively. The increase in net assets was primarily due to the profit
generated from the operation during the current year.

The Group derives its working capital mainly from cash and cash
equivalents and net cash generated from operating activities. The
directors expects that the Group will rely on the internally generated
funds and unutilised net proceeds from the listing of the shares of
the Company on the Stock Exchange on 16 November 2017, in the
absence of unforeseen circumstances.

As at 30 June 2021, our cash and bank balances amounted to
approximately HK$204.4 million (30 June 2020: approximately
HK$204.1 million); and our net current assets were approximately
HK$253.6 million (30 June 2020: approximately HK$218.9 million).
The current ratio, being current assets over current liabilities, was
approximately 3.4 and 3.7 as at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had approximately HK$204.4 million
total cash on hand, of which approximately HK$0.9 million was
restricted cash and denominated in Renminbi. For the remaining
balance approximately HK$203.5 million, mainly approximately
HK$30.0 million was denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, approximately
HK$74.7 milion was denominated in US Dollars, and approximately
HK$91.5 million was denominated in Renminbi. The Group's cash in US
Dollars and Renminbi was held to support its core operational needs.
In addition, the Group had approximately HK$170.8 million of fixed time
deposits with maturity within 12 months. For the fixed time deposits
approximately HK$18.0 million was denominated in Hong Kong Dollars,
approximately HK$69.8 million was denominated in US Dollars and
approximately HK$83.0 million was denominated in Renminbi.

As at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020, the Group did not have any
interest-bearing bank borrowings, and thus the computation of the
gearing ratios were not applicable as at 30 June 2021 and 30 June
2020.

During the year, the Group recorded over HK$13.5 million in capital
expenditure, which was mostly deployed for automation and equipment
upgrades.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE
OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities and did not
pledge any assets as at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 6 September 2021, RAFREN(BM)BR AR, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, BM MR EEERBR AR AR
the landlord, and Mr. Chen Zhencheng, the guarantor, entered into a
provisional tenancy agreement in respect of the leasing of a factory in
Huizhou (“Huizhou Factory Leasing’) for a term of ten years tentatively
commencing from 18 September 2021 to 17 September 2031. The
commencement of the Huizhou Factory Leasing is subject to the
execution of the formal tenancy agreement. For details of the transaction,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 6 September
2021 and 17 September 2021,

OUR EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30 June 2021, we had 971 employees in Hong Kong and
the Mainland China. During the peak season namely from June
to September for each year, in order to maximise our production
capacity, we expand our employees for production, who are principally
responsible for certain post-press processes and packaging which
have to be done manually and cannot otherwise be achieved by
automatic machines.

Our direct labour cost, including salaries, bonuses and other
employee’s benefits, amounted to approximately HK$40.2 milion and
approximately HK$29.6 million for the year ended 30 June 2021 and
2020, respectively. The Group had recorded a provision of redundancy
cost amounted to approximately HK$3.5 million for the year ended
30 June 2021 (2020: approximately HK$10.3 million). Remuneration
packages are generally structured by reference to market terms and
individual qualifications. Salaries and wages are normally reviewed
annually based on performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HK4.0 cents per share in
cash. The proposed final dividend is subject to shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. These,
together with an interim dividend of HK1.5 cent (2020: HK1.0 cent) per
share paid in March 2021, will make a total dividend of HK5.5 cents
(2020: HK4.5 cents) per share for the current year. The proposed final
dividend is expected to be distributed on Thursday, 23 December 2021
to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of
the Company on Wednesday, 15 December 2021.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

Net proceeds from the initial public offering were HK$124.0 million after
deducting all the direct costs associated with the Listing.

Up to the date of this report, the Group had used approximately
HK$55.8 million for equipment upgrades on the improvement of the
production process, approximately HK$8.3 million for general working
capital and approximately HK$1.3 million for the upgrade of enterprise
resources planning (‘ERP”) system. During the year, the net proceed,
have been used for the purpose consistent with the section headed
“Future Plan and Use of Proceeds” as set out in the prospectus of the
Company dated 2 November 2017 (the “Prospectus”).

Details of the allocation of the net proceeds, and the utilisation of the net
proceeds up to the date of this report are set out below:

PSR &
MRE EMARNAEERRAR - BRAMEE
SRR 124 OB BHTT -

RAHRERH  AEEDERBH58BEET - 4
83EEBT LA SABEBL M ARSMEEET
FFZRER - —REEESRITREEERRE
(TERPD A& - FA - FIISRIBFBRCIREARE
HBREAZZ—+F+—AZHNBRER([BRE
12 1 FEkl ARREH 81 K PSR MR | — B0 AR RO A
BB -

RAREBH - FASFIRFRN D EFITURAE
REFRNBABRETILT

Actual usage Unutilised net

up to proceeds up to
Percentage of Planned the date of the date of Expected timeline for utilising
Intended application of the net proceeds total proceeds applications this report this report the unutilised net proceeds
EFERE HEAHE RERE
BEN =E:i]:) BEN ABRAMSIEREN
FEREFENREAR Ak FEARER  ERERER ABALE RACARHR
%  HKS in million  HK$ in million HKS$ in million
BEET BEET BEET
Purchase four presses by stages (Note 1) 65.0 80.6 56.8 24.8  Expected to be fully utiised on
or before 31 December 2022
DRREEN AR (A1) ot e S
+ZA=t—8%
ZHEEBA
Relocation of a factory in Shenzhen 250 31.0 - 31.0  Expected to be fully utilised on
“Shenzhen Factory” (Note 2) or before 31 March 2022
WERYIBE (H:22) Bt e
ZA=t—RA%
ZHEEBA
Upgrade ERP system (Note 3) 3.3 41 1.3 2.8 Expected to be fully utiised on
or before 31 December 2022
FHRERPR S (H1#13) BN -T-ZF
+ZA=t—8%
ZHEEBA
General working capital 6.7 8.3 8.3 - NA
~BEEES AR
Total 1000 124.0 65.4 58.6
@it
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

USE OF PROCEEDS (Continued)

Note 1.

Note 2:

Note 3:

The Group has delayed the plan of relocation of the Shenzhen
Factory as stated in Note 2 below, and hence we have also deferred
the progress of purchasing Four Presses by stages. We have kept
searching for upgrade of our machines in the market and utilised
the relevant proceeds from the initial public offering of approximately
HK$55.8 million up to the date of this report for purchase of press and
related machines to improve the overall production efficiency. As we
are undergoing the relocation plan to the new factory, we expect to fully
utilise the relevant proceeds on or before 31 December 2022.

With reference to the “Voluntary Announcement — Business Updates”
dated 6 September 2019, the Group has entered into a Cooperation
Framework Agreement to develop and construct a factory, office
building, staff dormitory and utilities (the “New Properties”) on a piece
of self-owned industrial land by an independent third party located in
Huizhou City. To the best knowledge of the Directors, the construction
of the New Properties was complete in August 2021. On 6 September
2021, RIAFEN(EM)BRAF], an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, BM T ETE 8 E AMAR R A, the landlord, and
Mr. Chen Zhencheng, the guarantor, entered into a provisional tenancy
agreement in respect of the Huizhou Factory Leasing for a term of
ten years tentatively commencing from 18 September 2021 to 17
September 2031. The commencement of the Huizhou Factory Leasing
is subject to the execution of the formal tenancy agreement. The existing
tenancy agreement of the Shenzhen factory will be expired in March
2022. Hence, we expect to fully utilise the relevant proceeds on or
before 31 March 2022.

During the current year, the Group has entered into agreements with
independent third party ERP service providers to update our systems.
Up to the date of this report, we have already utilised HK$1.3 million to
the service providers for the update of our ERP system. Given we have
commenced to update our ERP system, we expect to fully utilise the
relevant proceeds on or before 31 December 2022,

On 10 January 2017, the Group have entered into a legally binding
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU”") with an independent third
party (the “New Landlord”). Pursuant to the MOU, we have the right to
lease, and the New Landlord shall lease to us, for three years (with an
option to renew granted for us for further three years), some of the area
as our new plant (the “New Plant”) within the piece of land located at
Xiagang Community, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC
(FPEE AR LB E R A e E L&) for industrial use.
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USE OF PROCEEDS (continued)

However, the New Landlord has sold the land together with the New
Plant to an independent third party, and hence there is a delay for the
relocation plan and the Group may not be able to relocate the factory as
originally scheduled as mentioned in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. Please refer to the “Voluntary
Announcement — Business Updates” dated 11 July 2018 for detalils.

On 3 June 2019, the Group entered into a cooperation framework
agreement (the “Cooperation Framework Agreement”) in relation to the
leasing and relocation of the Group's Shenzhen Factory to the new
plant.

According to the Cooperation Framework Agreement, an Independent
Third Party (the "Developer”) shall develop and construct the New
Properties on a piece of self-owned industrial land located in Huizhou
City (BJHT) in the PRC.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, it is expected that the
negotiating, finalising and signing of the Tenancy Agreement would take
place by the fourth quarter of 2021, a separate Tenancy Agreement to
lease the New Properties shall be entered into between the Developer
and the Group after negotiation and obtaining the approval from the
relevant PRC authorities.

The Company will make further announcement(s), as and when
appropriate, in relation to the status of the construction and leasing
of the New Properties, the Cooperation Framework Agreement and
the relocation plan of the Group in accordance with the Listing Rules.
Please refer to the “Voluntary Announcement — Business Updates”
dated 6 September 2019 for details.

On 6 September 2021, RIAFEDCEM)BRAF], an indirect vvhoHy—
owned subsidiary of the Company, BINTE EREERRERA
the landlord, and Mr. Chen Zhencheng, the guarantor, entered mto
a provisional tenancy agreement in respect of the Huizhou Factory
Leasing for a term of ten years tentatively commencing from 18
September 2021 to 17 September 2031. The commencement of
the Huizhou Factory Leasing is subject to the execution of the formal
tenancy agreement. For details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 6 September 2021 and 17

September 2021,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices and procedures. The corporate
governance principle of the Company emphasizes on accountability
and transparency and is adopted in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. In addition the Company will strive to continuously
improve these practices and cultivate an ethical corporate culture.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out on in the
Code of Corporate Governance (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Company has
complied with all the applicable code provisions in the CG Code since
30 June 2020 up to the date of this report.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD
PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is composed of
7 directors, of which 4 are Executive Directors and 3 are Independent
Non-executive Directors. All the Independent Non-executive Directors
have appropriate professional qualifications, experience or related
industry expertise. The Directors’ biography and relevant relationships
amongst them are set out in the Directors’ and Senior Management's
Profiles section under Report of the Directors on pages 771 to 75 of this
Annual Report.

Mr. Ho Yuk Chi resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director
and ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee, all with effect from 30
September 2020.

Withe effect from 1 October 2020, Mr. Wong Kam Fai has been
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director, and a member
of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee.

Review will be made regularly by the Board to ensure that it has a
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirement of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). Also, a balanced
composition of Executive Directors is maintained to ensure
independence and effective management. The Company has satisfied
the Listing Rules in having one of the Independent Non-executive
Directors with appropriate accounting qualifications and expertise to sit
in the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHERBE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD
PRACTICES (Continued)

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 and
Appendix 16 (12B) of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent
in accordance with the terms of the guidelines. The Company considers

all Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Independent Non-executive Directors are identified in all corporate
communications. An updated list of the Directors identifying the
Independent Non-executive Directors and the roles and functions of the
Directors is maintained on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

When selecting potential candidates for directors, skills, experience,
expertise, their devotion of time, potential conflicts of interests are key
factors of consideration. The Nomination Committee was set up to
make recommendations to the Board on the selection and nomination
of candidates for directorship. Majority of members of the Nomination
Committee are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board is accountable to shareholders and is responsible for the
formulation of the Group’s strategy, overseeing the management of the
business and affairs of the Group.

Key and important decisions are fully discussed at the board meetings.
All Directors have been fully consulted about any matters proposed for
inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has delegated the responsibility
for drawing up the agenda for each board meeting to the Company
Secretary. With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at board meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in a
timely manner.

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at regular intervals. The Board
would meet more frequently as and when required.

All the Directors are covered by the Director's & Officer's Liability
Insurance, which is also part of our best practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD
PRACTICES (Continued)

The attendance record of the Directors at the board meetings since 30

Deessedpa
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June 2020 up to the date of this report is as follows: EHEEZERIOHEOT
Attendance
Board meetings
HER
EEEER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHAN Peter Tit Sang PREE A ST AE 4/4
Mr. CHAN Kenneth Chi Kin PRASER e 4/4
Mr. CHAN Chi Ming PREAEE 4/4
Mr. CHAN Chun Sang Desmond BREESE 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. NG Sze Yuen Terry RETLEE 4/4
Dr. CHU Po Kuen Lovuis RiGHEE 4/4
Mr. HO Yuk Chi (Resigned on 30 September 2020) MFEEE(R_E-_TFNLA=+HEIT) 1/4
Mr. WONG Kam Fai (Appointed on 1 October 2020) EREAE(N_ZE-_TF+H—HEZT) 3/4

Notice of at least fourteen days is given to the Directors for regular
meetings, while Board papers are sent to the Directors not less than
three days before the scheduled date of a board or board committee
meeting. The Directors can attend meetings in persons or through
other means of electronic communication. The Company Secretary
ensures that the procedure and all applicable rules and regulations are
strictly and fully complied with. Minutes of board meetings and board
committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
available for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Directors.

Directors have full access to information on the Group and are able to
obtain independent professional advice whenever necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHERBE

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR
DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will meet with other Directors and
key management executives, and will receive a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment.
Subsequently, he will receive briefings and other professional
development necessary to ensure that he has a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Company and he is fully aware of
his responsibility with the Company.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Directors
are also invited to participate in the Company events to familiarize
themselves with the operations of the Company and create opportunity
to communicate with other management members of the Company.

The records of training as received by each Director for the year ended
30 June 2021 are summarized as follows:

EE2EIIRXE
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ATHERSELER - EFRESEARFE
8 UREARRIENE - TRIERESRARR]E M
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BREBENBE_Z-—FRA=TRHIEFEER
Bz RSk haian s

Type of trainings

EHER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHAN Peter Tit Sang PREE A e A
Mr. CHAN Kenneth Chi Kin PRASER LA A
Mr. CHAN Chi Ming PRAEBRSEAE A
Mr. CHAN Chun Sang Desmond PRELESTE A
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFBTES
Mr. NG Sze Yuen Terry REkE A
Dr. CHU Po Kuen Louis RAkmese A
Mr. HO Yuk Chi (Resigned on 30 September 2020) AGEEE(RZZE_SFNLA=THET) A
Mr. WONG Kam Fai (Appointed on 1 October 2020) HRBAE(R_ZTTF T A —AEEZT) A

A.  reading materials relating to general business, regulatory updates A HTEERMRER - FTRBSRTFEEAR

on listing rules and board practices
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND
DUTIES

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance functions as set out below:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(v)  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Chairman
of the Audit Committee is the person to be notified for securities
dealings by Directors and a designated form is used for notification and
acknowledgement purpose.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, their compliance with the required standards of dealings and
its code of conduct regarding the directors’ securities transaction since
30 June 2020 up to the date of this report and there was no event of
non-compliance.

Senior management of the Company is also required to comply with the
guidelines on similar terms as set out in the Model Code.
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SHERBE

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company places great importance on internal control and risk
management to safeguard the assets of the Company and the interests
of shareholders. The Board has overall responsibility for the system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities for maintaining an
effective system of internal control. The Audit Committee reviews the
process by which the Group evaluates its control environment and risk
assessment process, and the way in which business and control risks
are managed through the assistance of the Company's Internal Control
Consultant.

The Internal Control Consultant assesses risk exposure, formulates
audit plan and ensures that the audit programs cover key internal control
areas of operating subsidiaries on a rotational basis for the review by the
Audit Committee.

The Internal Control Consultant reports her findings and recommendations
to management of the Company and the Audit Committee. The Intemal
Control Consultant also monitors the follow-up actions agreed upon in
response to her recommendations and reports to the Audit Committee the
progress of implementation of those recommendations.

With the assistance of the Audit Committee and the Company's Internal
Control Consultant, the Board is satisfied that the overall financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management of the
Group continues to be effective.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group. The Directors ensure that the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditors” Report on pages 84 to 89 of this Annual Report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2021, the auditors of the Company
received approximately HK$1,254,000 (2020: HK$1,309,000) for
their audit service. Non-audit service which covered taxation service
provided to the Group was approximately HK$63,500 (2020:
HK$61,000) in the same vear.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises 2 Independent Non-executive
Directors and 1 Executive Director. They are Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis
(Committee Chairman), Mr. Wong Kam Fai and Mr. Chan Peter Tit
Sang. The Committee’s authority and duties are set out in written terms
of reference which are posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and the
senior management were reviewed by the Committee. Remuneration,
including basic salary and performance bonus. Annual salary
adjustment and performance bonus are subject to review and approval
by the Committee.

No individual directors and senior managers are allowed to determine
his or her own remuneration.

The Committee met once since 30 June 2020 up to the date of this
report with a 100% attendance by all Committee members.
During the year, the works performed by the Committee included the

following:

- the review of the performance and remuneration packages of
directors and senior management; and

- the review of the remuneration policy of the Group.
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AN\ R e S
ERER/RE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises 1 Executive Director, Mr.
Chan Peter Tit Sang (Committee Chairman) and 2 Independent
Non-executive Directors, Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry and Mr. Wong Kam
Fai. The defined terms of reference of the Committee are set out in
writing and are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Committee is responsible for making recommendation to the Board
for selection and nomination of directors, and the succession planning
of directors and senior management. The Committee also reviews
the size, structure and composition of the Board with reference to the
Company's board diversity policy and assesses the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Committee met once since 30 June 2020 and up to the date of this
report with a 100% attendance by all Committee members.

During the year, the works performed by the Committee included the
following:

— the recommendation of the retiring directors for re-election at the
annual general meeting;

- the review of composition of the Board; and

- the assessment of independence of the independent Non-
executive Directors.

The Board adopted the board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve and maintain diversity of the Board to enhance
quality of its performance. The policy aims to achieve diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors including but not being limited
to skills, regional and industry experience, background, age, race,
gender and other qualities. These differences will be taken into account
in determining the optimum composition of the Board. All Board
appointments are based on merit, in the content of the talents, skills and
experience, and taking into account diversity.

The Nomination Committee will report annually on the composition of
the Board under diversified perspective, and monitor the implementation
of this policy to ensure its effectiveness. It will discuss any revisions
that may be required and recommend such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process in relation to nomination and
appointment of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the
Board members have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Group’s business.

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability
and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

° Reputation for integrity;

° Accomplishment, experience and reputation in the business and
industry;

° Commitment in respect of avallable time and relevant interest;

. Compliance with the criteria of independence, in case for the
appointment of an independent non-executive director, as
prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange;

o Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service; and

° Any other relevant factors as may be determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time as
appropriate.

The Nomination Policy also sets out the procedure for the selection and
appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general
meetings. During the year ended 30 June 2021, there was no change
in the composition of Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required
and recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.
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SHERBE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises 3 Independent Non-executive
Directors. They are Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry (Committee Chairman),
Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis and Mr. Wong Kam Fai. The defined terms of
reference of the Committee are set out in writing and are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
effectiveness of Company's intermal control and the Company's internal
audit function, risk management system and regulatory compliance, the
review of the Company's financial information and compliance, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal of
external auditor and assessing its independence and performance.
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Since 30 June 2020 and up to the date of this report, the Committee  ZZEBE@RBE _Z-_TFNA=+tHEIKEZAR
held two mestings and the attendance records are as follows: HERHMRTMAEE - HELSET -

Attendance

HEER

Mr. NG Sze Yuen Terry REEE 2/2

Dr. CHU Po Kuen Lovuis SRR 2/2

Mr. HO Yuk Chi (Resigned on 30 September 2020) ARBEE(RZZE_ZEFNA=THEHE) 1/2

Mr. WONG Kam Fai (Appointed on 1 October 2020) ERBEE(R_E_SF+A—BEEZT) 172
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continuea)
The works performed by the Committee during the year included the
following:

- reviewing with the auditor on key audit and accounting matters,
and updates on regulatory rules in the auditor's Audit Committee
Report and the draft audited financial statements for the financial
year ended 30 June 2021

= reviewing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2021 focusing on business highlights, any change of accounting
policies and practices, and compliance with accounting
standards and listing rules requirements

- reviewing with the auditor the scope of their audit, their
communication plan, their independence, developments
affecting the Company’s business, their risk assessment and
updates of accounting standards and listing rules as affecting the
Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2021

- reviewing the audit plan, audit progress report and significant
audit findings with management at all committee meetings

S reviewing with management on implementation of the
recommendations on internal control made by the Internal Control
Consultant

reviewing the risk management and interal control of the Group

The Committee is satisfied with the review of the work of external
auditors, their audit fees, results of their audits and has recommended
to the Board their re-appointment for the financial year ending on 30
June 2022 at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company. A decision to declare and pay
any dividends would require the approval of the Board and will be at
their discretion. The Board may from time to time determine and pay
to the Company's shareholders such interim dividends as it considers
appropriate. The Board may recommend the payment of final dividends
which are required to be approved by shareholders of the Company in
general meetings.
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TREGHRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company recognizes the importance of communication with
the shareholders of the Company, both individual and institutional as
well as potential investors. The Company adopted a Shareholders
Communication Policy with an aim of ensuring that shareholders are
provided with timely information about the Company and enabling them
to engage actively with the Company and to exercise their rights in an
informed manner.

The AGM also provides a good opportunity for communication between
the Board and shareholders. The Executive Chairman of the Board, the
Chairman of the respective Committees as well as the external auditors
are normally present to answer questions as raised by shareholders.
Notice of the AGM and the related circular are sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days before the meeting.

Votes of the shareholders at general meeting will be taken by poll in
accordance with the Listing Rules. Detailed procedures for conducting
a poll will be explained to shareholders at the beginning of the general
meeting to ensure that shareholders are familiar with the voting
procedures. Each issue will be proposed by a separate resolution by
the Chairman of the general meeting. The poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on the same
day of the general meeting. Each general meeting, other than an annual
general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting
("EGM").

The 2020 AGM was held on 1 December 2020 at 10/F, United Centre,
95 Queensway, Admiralty. Businesses transacted at the 2020 AGM
included the adoption of audited consolidated financial statements,
the approval of final dividend, the re-election of Directors and fixing of
the Directors’ fees, the re-appointment of auditor, and the renewal of
general mandates with respect to the buy-back of shares and the issue
of new shares.

The attendance records of the Directors at the 2020 AGM are set out
below:
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Directors AGM attended
= HERRBFASY
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. CHAN Peter Tit Sang BRE A ST v
Mr. CHAN Kenneth Chi Kin PRAEE L v
Mr. CHAN Chi Ming PRAARSEAE v
Mr. CHAN Chun Sang Desmond BRELESTE v
Independent Non-executive Directors BAIFHTES

Mr. NG Sze Yuen Terry e et v
Mr. CHU Po Kuen Louis RS v
Mr. WONG Kam Fai (Appointed on 1 October 2020) EHRBAE(RZE_SF+A—HEZT) v
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

Procedures and right for shareholders to
convene EGM

An EGM shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
(the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
or the Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

The requisition must state clearly the names of the Eligible
Shareholders concermed, specify the objects of the meeting, and
be signed by the Eligible Shareholders concerned. The Eligible
Shareholders must prove their shareholdings in the Company to
the satisfaction of the Company.

The requisition will be verified with Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company and upon their
confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order, the Board
will convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the requirements under the Articles to all the registered
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified
as not in order or the Shareholders concerned have failed to
deposit sufficient money to meet the Company's expenses for
the said purposes, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not call
for an EGM.

If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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SHERBE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

Procedures and right for shareholders to
convene EGM (Continued)

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to move new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Companies Law (Revised) of Cayman
Islands. However, pursuant to the Articles, shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may by means of requisition convene an EGM.

Specific enquiries and suggestions by shareholders can be sent in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company's
registered office. Shareholders are encouraged to access to the
Company website at http://www.sunhingprinting.com for all relevant
information including Company’s announcements, press releases,
financial highlights, the Company's constitutional documents and
detailed procedures for shareholders to convene meetings.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has a proactive policy for promoting investor
relations and communications by maintaining a regular dialogue
with investors and other stakeholders. The Company’s website at
http://www.sunhingprinting.com also features a dedicated Investor
Relations section to facilitate communication with shareholders and
investors. Corporate information and other relevant financial and non-
financial information are made available electronically and in a timely
manner.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

The Group is pleased to present its environmental, social and
governance (‘ESG”) report (the “Report”) to all its stakeholders. The
content contained herein focuses on providing an overview of the ESG
performance of its major operations in the People's Republic of China
(“PRC”) from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021 (the “Reporting Year"). This
also facllitates the Group to conduct thorough performance review and
evaluation to enhance its overall performance results in the future. The
Reporting Year coincides with its financial year.

Scope of the Report

This report covers the reporting period from 1 July 2020 to 30
June 2021, and makes relevant disclosures in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” in Appendix
27 1o the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) and compiles with the “Comply or Explain”
provision therein. The Report summarizes our ESG performance during
the Reporting Year, and covers our management policies, mechanisms
and measures in place during the Reporting Year with respect to
environmental protection, emission reduction, safe workplace,
staff training and drills, supply chain management and community
investment and engagement. Focuses are placed on certain aspects
closely relevant to our shareholders and other stakeholders, with our full
commitment to sustainable development of the Group as a whole.

The present scope of the ESG Report covers the principal operating
activities of the Group’s manufacturing and sales of printing products
which are operating in the PRC. The Group considered the operation
of the Hong Kong office is immaterial to the Group's environmental
performance, therefore, the Key Performance Indicators (‘KPIs”) data of
the Hong Kong office had been excluded from the current ESG Report.
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RE  HERERBE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES (Continued)

The Group would like to achieve the following goals on setting the
environmental, social and governance policies:

1. To minimize the burden of the environment
2. To identify and prioritize the environmental and social issues
S To foster the innovative culture

4, To respond to major crisis and market changes in a timely
manner

(5% To safeguard human rights and social culture

6. To actively engage stakeholders in the decision-making process
7. To nurture and empower our employees

8. To support the local community

Reporting Principle

The ESG report adheres to the ESG Reporting Guidelines set out in
the Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, including materiality, quantitative and
consistency. Details are illustrated as follows:

Materiality

The Group has identified ESG related issues, gathered and reviewed
the opinions from internal management and various stakeholders,
assessed the relevance and materiality of the issues, and prepared
and validated information of the ESG Report. The ESG Report provides
comprehensive coverage of the key ESG issues of concern to the
Group’s stakeholders.

Quantitative

The disclosure of Environmental, Social and Governance KPIs in
the ESG report are supported by quantitative data and measurable
standards. All applicable statistics, calculation tools, methodologies,
reference materials and sources of conversion factor used are
disclosed when presenting the emission data.

Consistency

To facilitate the comparison of ESG performance between years, the
Group uses consistent reporting and calculation methods as far as
reasonable, and details the significant changes in methodologies in
the relevant sections. The intensities in the Report were calculated per
hundred thousand Hong Kong dollars of Groups' revenue.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group actively strives to better understand and engage its
stakeholders to ensure continuous improvements. We strongly believe
that our stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining the success of
our business in the challenging market. The Group regularly assess
and determine our environmental, social and governance risks, and
ensure that the relevant risk management measures and internal
control systems are operating effectively. The following table shows the
means of communication with the stakeholders and the stakeholders’

expectations and concems:

Major stakeholders

FTERNZEBEE

Expectations and concerns

HEHEER

BiE - HEREARE

BANR=AHEHEBE
REBBEBBAPORAT BEF A E L E 28
BN - SIS FHEE S - RIMBE - FEFRW
PBH T SRR - M B & ER PR E T 6B
BIEPAHENACERAEE - NEETE TR
EERE e RERRR - BREERREERE
Bt Ko PO EBYE I Bl &2 3 2 e B WU iE T - BRAE R
HEENBBERERNRERE HEEERWT
*:

Means of communication

Government/Regulatory
authorities

B, EEAE

Shareholders/Investors

BRBEE

Employees

—  Compliance with laws and regulations

—  Fulfil tax obligation

— EERER
- BIIRBERE

— Return on investment

— (Good corporate governance system  —
— Transparency and disclosure of -

corporate information
— Sustainability strategies and
development
— REER
— RIFNDEERRS
— RAMEEMEREREE
— MREEREBERERE

— Labour rights

—  Compensation and benefit
—  Career development

— Health and workplace safety

— BTN
— HERIEF

— BEBE

~ RERBEZRS

Regular declaration

— Onsite inspection

— Laws and regulations
— TEHIERR

— Bigs

— JEEER

— Shareholders’ meetings
Interim and annual reports
Announcements

—  Official company website
- Emalil

- BRRegE

— FHRFERE

- nE

— REIEFHE

— B

- Workers’ Union

- Staff activities

— Performance appraisal
- Staff handbook

— Trainings and drills
_ I@

- BIEH

— BXMEZ

— BIFMW

— JRZER
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS (Continued)

Major stakeholders Expectations and concerns

RO FZEEE @)

Means of communication

FERZEREE HAEEER BRERE
Customers — High quality products and services — Business visit
—  Timely delivery —  Email, phone call and
— Reasonable price communication apps
—  Service value —  Customer satisfaction survey
— Labour protection and work safety
R — BEERHERS - B%ED
- EERE — BEFHH - EEkEMEAERX
— BEER - BEFREERE
— R%EE
- BIRERIEZR
Suppliers — Payment schedule — Business visit
— Stable demand —  Emalil, phone call and
communication apps
—  Supplier performance evaluation
IR R ES - BBFES
— BENFEX — BFEH - ERKEBEAEARER
— fEnRRAE

Communities —  Environmental protection
—  Community contribution
— Economic development
HE - RERE
— HEER
- KRBEER

BOARD STATEMENT

The Group is fully aware of the importance of efficient ESG
governance to corporate sustainability development. The Group has
established an ESG management framework with clear demarcation
of responsibilities to ensure the effective implementation of the ESG
governance policy. The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Group
assumes primary responsibility for the supervision of the Group's
ESG governance, including determining the Group’s ESG approach,
understanding and controlling ESG related risks, and supervising and
leading the management and relevant departments in the formulation
and implementation of relevant policies and measures. Through the
adoption of a “top-down” management approach, the Group is able
to facilitate effective communication among all working unites and
allow policymakers to get a good grasp of practical experience in daily
operations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD STATEMENT (Continued)
The Board is responsible for:
o assessing and determining the Group’s ESG risks;

° ensuring the establishment of appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and interal control systems;

° developing ESG strategies, action plans and objectives;

o monitoring the progress and performance of ESG initiatives; and

° reviewing and approving the annual ESG reports.

The Management is responsible for:
. reporting ESG-related risks and opportunities to the Board;

° provide guidance on the implementation of ESG policies and
measures;

° arranging work in accordance with the ESG strategies, action
plans and objectives formulated by the Board;

° reporting to the Board on the progress and performance of ESG
work; and

. reviewing and submitting annual ESG report to the Board for
approval.

Functional Departments are responsible for:
° coordinate and implement specific ESG policies and measures;

o report to the management on ESG work;

o collecting information and data in relation to ESG performance of
the Group; and

. preparing annual ESG reports and reporting to the management.

The Board will continue to oversee the ESG-related work and keep
abreast of the latest ESG disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. The Board also ensures that all departments work
closely to achieve the goal of operational compliance and shouldering
social responsibility, and will develop clearer ESG objectives and targets
for the Group in the future.
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL

Climate change is currently a key topic of social issue. For the purpose
of effectively managing a series of challenges faced due to climate
change, the Chinese government officially announced that China has
been working towards the domestic independent contribution adopting
more powerful policies and measures to achieve the goal that carbon
dioxide emission to peaks before 2030, and to achieve carbon neutrality
before 2060. In order to actively respond to the national strategic goals
and meet the requirements of the 14th Five-Year Plan, the Group strives
to promote sustainable development, actively contributes to tackling the
challenges imposed by the global climate change and promotes the
green and low-carbon.

We regarded sustainability as the cornerstone of our corporate culture,
S0 integrating environmental and socio-economic considerations
into our decision-making processes was of utmost importance. The
Group based on the national and local laws and regulations and made
reference to the ISO14001 Environmental Management System and the
Group’s operating environment, structure, production capabilities and
human resources to develop an unique environmental management
system and established regulations and guidelines on pollutant
management to regulate waste gases, sewage, noise and different
types of solid wastes generated in operation and production. The Group
adheres to the enterprise culture of focusing on environment protection
and energy conservation; with an aim of setting up a comprehensive
interal environmental management system to monitor, manage and
dispose of various pollutants generated from the operations of our
plants and offices; and to strictly follow the standards and requirements
of the local government.

The Group has established the Compliance Manual over its operation
which identified the relevant laws, regulations and pollutant emission
standards that the Group strictly abided by and also the corresponding
to environmental factors that the Group has impacts on the environment
during its operation. The Group performs regular compliance review
in order to ensure no non-compliance event happened during its
operations. During the Reporting Year, there was no material non-
compliance issue with relevant laws and regulations related to the
environment has come to our attention.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIR-dHE8RER

wE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A7 RIBEHE @)
Besides, the Board had developed the 2021 envionmental targets for ~— th4h - EE @R BLE Y REHNEIL T =
various emissions of the PRC operation. Details are as follow: T—FIRIBER - FEHIOT ¢
Results as at
the end of
Potential emissions Targets Measures Reporting Year
BREN BE it RBEFERZER
Air pollutants during Meets the emission standards of 1. Choose more environmentally friendly soybean ink, water- Target achieved
production Guangdong Province “Emission limits of air based ol to reduce the use of UV ail ink to produce lesser
polutants” VOCs;
2. Entrust a third-party testing agency to test annually.
FESREEEL HEERE(ARIRMHRRE) 2 1 BERERROADAZBRKSORARSERVER - £ EXER
RS PEigE MALEEBREERILEY
2. BRE=FRAIKREETFERA -
Air pollutants during Mests the “Emission Standard of Cooking 1. Organize training and leaming according to the “Kitchen Target achieved
operation of canteen Fume” Discharge Faclities Management Regulations”;
2. Entrust a third-party testing agency to test annually;
3. The administration department regularly maintains the
treatment facilities and records truthfully.
EERERELY HE(RRFMEHHIEE) 1. R R H R E RN BT REE ERAR
ZERERY) 2 EREZFRAKEETERRA
3. TTIRERFTE B M R IR SR N B A8
Sewage Meets the emission standards of 1. Wastewater from production is uniformly recycled and treated  Target achieved
Guangdong Province “Discharge limits of by a qualified third-party recycling company;
water pollutants” 2. The industrial wastewater is inspected by a professional third-
party inspection company every year.
a7k HEERE O RMBERRE) 2 1 EERREAZEKA-BAERNEZAERARS— EREE
PERURE B R ERE
2. TERKB—HEENE=TRBARETEERA -
Hazardous solid wastes ~ 100% safe recycling 1. Hazardous solid wastes are put into designated storage points - Target achieved
and recycled by a qualified third-party recycling company.
BREEEREY 100%& 2K 1 BESEBEIHMEBERT HENY  WH—HAEE  EREE
HE=F B R R o
Non-hazardous solid 100% safe recycling 1. Packaging waste and living waste are collected in bags and ~ Target achieved
wastes collected by the local sanitation department;
2. 100% of recyclable waste, such as paper scraps, paper skins,
waste documents, scrap defective products/goods, etc. is
handed over to renewable resources for recycling.
BZEREY 100%R 2B 1 BREENREEENBREERY  AEBAEEDR  EREE

YrER ;
2. #100%R] R (PIDAEE « BT - BB  BE
HEBRESR/ ER%)EAUBHERETEYY o
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A7 RIBEHE @)

Results as at

the end of
Potential emissions Targets Measures Reporting Year
BREEN BE it RBEFERZER
Leakage of dangerous  No leakage of dangerous materials/ 1. According to the “Dangerous Goods Management Target achieved
materials/chemicals chemicals Regulations’, hazardous chemicals are classified and stored
according to their characteristic and perform checking
regularly;
2. Schedule a chemical spill drill annually.
Rk BN Rk SRR (LEMERER 1. BE(ERAERRON) ARENAREHNERTY EXER
BREAE  WEHETHRS
2 RHERIEMRFES -
Noise Meets the “Emission Standard for Industrial - 1. Using a noise detector to detect whether the noise in the Target achieved
Enterprises Noise at Boundary” workshop exceeds the standard;
2. Entrusting third party inspection company perform regular
checking.
BE HE(IECEBAREREHNERE) 1 FRRSRABRATSREATRE ERAR

2. BRS=IRAARETERRA -

Aspect A1: Emissions

Air Emissions

The Group always comply with the applicable provisions of the national
and the local laws, regulations and standards of the operating locations
and established related internal policy and procedures, demand the
employees to strictly follow the operating procedures of the production
equipment and environmental protection equipment and provided
suitable labor supplies to our employees, so as 1o effectively control
and manage the air pollutants emission and reduce its environmental
impacts and harms to our employees.

The Group'’s air pollutants mainly generated from the usage of gasoline
and diesel oil in the automobiles, including nitrogen oxides ("NO,"),
sulphur oxides (“SO,”) and respiratory suspended particles ("RSP”).
The Group adopted a number of conservation measures to manage
the use of vehicles fuel in business and non-business in order to
reduce emissions of exhaust air and greenhouse gases. When
purchasing new vehicles, we take precedence to small-displacement
economical vehicles to reduce energy consumption. Under the same
circumstances, we give priority to using gasoline cars instead of diesel
cars that may reduce vehicle energy consumption. Drivers must plan
the route in advance so as to make the shortest distance. We require
the driver to stop the car engine when the vehicle is idling to reduce
unnecessary energy consumption. We also actively promote the
environmental concept of “Green Travel” and encourage employees
to use public transport, or even bicycles or walk to work instead of
using private vehicles that minimize fuel consumption and exhaust air
emissions.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Air Emissions (Continued)

To reduce the Volatile Organic Compounds (“VOC”) generated from
our production process, we have installed the ultraviolet photolysis
waste gas treatment equipment at each outlet, which are able to
remove 90% of the VOC pollutant from the air emission. While the
Group actively performs research and development on new raw
materials and technologies, we also integrated environmental protection
considerations into it, not only providing various of solution towards our
customers’ products and can also further reduce the adverse effects of
the Group's operations on the environment. On top of that, the Group
is planning to install an online VOC monitoring device at the discharge
outlet. The local environmental protection department can monitor the
VOC data of the plant at any time through the information publishing
platform.

The Group regularly entrusts third-party professional inspecting
agencies to test the pollutants at each discharge outlet in the factory
and ambient air around the plant in accordance with the emission
standards and methods of the local environment protection government
departments. It is to prevent any excessive emission left unaware which
may lead to non-compliance to the local emission standards and it also
protecting our atmospheric environment. During the Reporting Year, the
test results are in compliance with the national “Emission standard of air
pollutants for printing industry”.

With the success in implementing above measures, the Group’s
intensity of air emissions for the Reporting Year was 0.15 kg per
hundred thousand Hong Kong dollars of Groups'’ revenue, which was
same as last year while the consumption of fuel has increased in the
Reporting Year. The components of the air emissions were illustrated
below.
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Air Emissions (Continued)

Looking ahead, we will conduct regular checks and maintenance
of our vehicles to ensure their energy efficiencies and integrate fuel
conservation knowledge to our employees, while continuing to record
and monitor our air emissions in a bid to cut down our air emissions in
the future.

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

GHG emissions are the main culprits of global warming. In order to
reduce our GHG emissions, we have embraced in various green
practices in our day-to-day operations to demonstrate our commitment
to environmental conservation, natural resources preservation and
waste reduction.

The GHG emissions of our PRC factory were mainly attributable to
the fossil fuel consumption by vehicles and use of refrigerant (Scope
1), electricity consumption (Scope 2), paper waste disposed of at
landfills, electricity used for fresh water and sewage processing by
the responsible authorized government departments, as well as
business air travel by employees (Scope 3). Our PRC factory produced
approximately 4,297 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions
during the Reporting Year (FY2019/20: 3,630 tonnes), with an
increase of approximately 18%. This is mainly due to the increase of
production level which had also increased the use the electricity and
the replacement of the refrigerant for the old air conditioner. Besides,
the use of delivery vehicles has been increased due to the increase
of production level, thereby, the greenhouse gas emission generated
from the consumption of diesel oil increased accordingly. Detailed
breakdown of the GHG emissions by scope s illustrated below.

GHG Emissions by Scope
EREED S HEE R
FY2020/21 (the Reporting Year)
ZEIE "—ME (BEEE)

5%

Total Emissions

HHE

® Scope 1
e

@ Scope 2
#E 2

Scope 3
E 3

i Last corresponding year's GHG emissions comparative figures are
restated to conform with current year's presentation.
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions (Continued)
The GHG emissions are classified into three separate scopes as shown
in the above charts, while the detailed emissions of the three scopes are

shown in the below table:
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EEA1 : e &)
BERBE(EZTRE ) SR

MEBAT  EEREHRS A= EBIHE =
(B E B RN T

Emissions (in tonnes)

BEbk (M=)
Year ended Year ended
Scope Emission Sources 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
BE-Z--F HE_T_ZTHF
EE BB AGE AAZTHLEEE RNA=THIEFE
1 Emissions from Fossil Fuel Consumption 155 127
RERREDE R
Emissions from the Use of Refrigerant 76 Nil £
REERERBIRIHER
2 Emissions from Electricity Consumption 4,028 3,462
REE BRI
3 Emissions from Paper Waste Disposed of at landfill 8 92
REEERHE R RBERNPER
Emissions from Water and Sewage Processing 30 31
RE BRI K TKETHERL
Emissions from Employee Business Air Travel Nil & 1
RE & B ABMZEZ IR HER
Total 4,297 3,630
st
g Last corresponding year's GHG emissions comparative figures are BRARNFEZEMARN  EEY L —EHESF

restated to conform with current year's presentation.
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions (Continued)

In light of GHG emissions’ environmental impacts, we have continued
to implement various measures to cut down our consumption of
resources and carbon emissions. We will conduct regular checks and
maintenance of our vehicles and production facilities to ensure their
energy efficiencies. While some of the reusable paper will be reused in
our production cycles, extemnal service provider has been engaged to
collect the recyclable paper waste for other purposes as well. We also
encourage employees to use natural light for daily operations, restricted
use of air conditioners according to seasonal and temperature changes,
regularly clean the air conditioner’s filter and tumn off the unnecessary
electrical equipment after work, phasing out old equipment in order to
increase the energy efficiency and avoiding wastage. Our employees
are also encouraged to conserve resources and energy to contribute
to environmental protection together with our Group. We will continue
to monitor our emissions levels and formulate environmentally friendly
measures to alleviate our environmental impact.

With the aforementioned measures and our employees’ effort put into
the Group’s environmental policy, the intensity of total GHG emission
has decreased from 1.16 tonnes per hundred thousand Hong Kong
dollars of Groups' revenue in FY2019/2020 to 1.13 tonnes per hundred
thousand Hong Kong dollars of Groups' revenue in the Reporting
Year while the GHG emission increased 18%. We conduct regular
checks and maintenance of our production machineries to ensure
energy efficiency and avoid unnecessary electricity consumption,
as well as promoting the virtues of resources conservation among
our employees. Besides, we will continue to monitor the total GHG
emissions of the factory in order to make improvements and reduce our
carbon emissions in the future. We also keep a close eye on the GHG
emissions of Hong Kong office and take practicable steps to make
improvements and reduce our GHG emissions in the future.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Hazardous Waste Management

In compliance with the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste”
and other applicable environmental laws and regulations of the local
government, the Group has formulated related internal policy and
procedures to manage and monitor the process in solid wastes
collection, storage and disposal, as well as the physical storage
facilities.

The waste water and ink produced during the production process may
cause adverse impact to the environment. In light of this, the Group
has installed a CTP sewage treatment system, which can effectively
filter out and purify the hazardous substances produced during the
production process. On top of that, the Group has installed two set of
waste water recycle facilities in the treatment system, the facilities are
able to recycle the treated waste water back to production process for
further usage. We also engaged a third-party inspection company to
perform acceptance procedure on behalf of the Group over the set up
and function of the sewage treatments facilities.

The Group mainly generates number of hazardous solid wastes
during its operation, including mixed waste oil, waste ink, printing plate
washing wastewater, developing waste liquid, waste fluorescent tubes,
waste rags, waste gloves and waste water treatment sludge. The
Group follows the local government’s laws and regulations to set up
a temporary storage warehouse for hazardous wastes, and take anti-
scattering and anti-leakage measures to prevent any environmental
pollution events. The containers loaded with hazardous solid wastes
have been affixed labels and stored in designated locations by
categories. Each factory regularly inspects the storage area of
hazardous solid wastes and takes appropriate measures if any leakage
or hidden safety hazard is found so as to prevent secondary pollution.
All the hazardous solid wastes are collected and disposed by licensed
external service provider to ensure safe disposal, which minimizes
the adverse impact on the environment. Meanwhile, all of the waste
discharge levels, including both hazardous and non-hazardous waste,
are closely monitored by the Internal Audit Department to stay alert of
unregulated waste disposal and potential hazards.
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Hazardous Waste Management (Continued)

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded a total of 10 tonnes
of hazardous waste (FY2019/20: 12 tonnes), with a decrease of
approximately 17% compared with FY2019/20 while the production
level was increased compared with FY2019/20. This was mainly due
to the storage level of the hazardous waste were not enough to be
recycled by the entrusted recycler. All hazardous wastes generated
were stored at the designated area in the factory and illegal dumping is
strictly forbidden. Although we cannot drastically reduce our production
of hazardous wastes during our production process due to industry
limitations, we encourage our employees to fully utilize the resources so
as to reduce unnecessary consumption.

Non-Hazardous Waste Management

The non-hazardous waste produced by the Group was mainly
attributable to the excessive materials generated during the production
process, including paper, packaging ribbon, metal and plastic waste
and living wastes generated from our daily life. In order to reduce
the production of non-hazardous waste, the Group upholds the 3Rs
principles, namely reduce, reuse and recycle. For example, excessive
materials are either reused in the next production cycle or collected and
recycled by external service provider for other purposes. In addition,
the Group also attempts to make accurate estimation of the use of raw
materials in its production process before placing purchase order so
as to reduce unnecessary consumption. All wastes generated during
our production processes are recycled by recyclers with recycling
technology, which can further reduce the pressure on the environment
caused by waste landfills.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Non-Hazardous Waste Management (Continued)

For living wastes, we follow the requirements of the local governments
of each operating location to classify the waste from business operation
and living purposes into different categories; such as recyclable waste,
kitchen waste, other waste and these wastes are regularly handed over
to the local sanitation department for recycling, landfill or incineration.
Apart from that, the Group implemented following waste reduction
measures in the office to reduce the environmental impact of the
Group’s operations at all levels:

o Employee education and implement policies of reducing,
recycling and harmlessness of office and domestic waste;

. Set up microwaves in the office and encourage employees to
bring their own lunch and reduce ordering takeaway food;

o Reduce the use of disposable consumables, such as food
packaging boxes, paper cups, paper plates, plastic bags, etc.;

° Encourage employees to reuse wastepaper or stationery, such
as single-sided printed paper, envelopes, folders, etc.; and

o Encourage employees to use electronic communication as far as
possible, and advocate a paperless work environment.

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded approximately 3,031
tonnes of non-hazardous wastes (FY2019/20: 2,832 tonnes), showing
an increase of around 7%. Among the non-hazardous wastes, around
98% were recycled by external service provider and only 2% were
disposed of directly at landfills. The intensity of total non-hazardous
wastes of the Reporting Year was 0.80 tonnes per hundred thousand
Hong Kong dollars of Groups’ revenue (FY2019/20: 0.91 tonnes per
hundred thousand Hong Kong dollars of Groups’ revenue), with a
decrease of 12% compared with last year.
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Noise Management

The noise produced by the Group's manufacturing business mainly
comes from the operation of production machinery and equipment.
We control the noise level and its impact on the environment through
restricting the production workshop location, the placement setting of
production equipment and implementing vibration and noise reduction
measures. Our production workshops are made of materials or
structures with good sound insulation facilities, shock absorbers are
put under the equipment, we focus on the repairs and maintenance
of the machinery and equipment, and lubricating oil is used to prevent
machine wear. We schedule appropriate time for production and focus
on greening of the factory environment, hope that attenuation through
trees can continuously reduce the impact of noise on the surrounding
community environment. The Group has strictly complied with the noise
emission limits in the “Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises Noise
at Boundary”. During the Reporting Year, our factory has conducted the
annual noise testing and the results have met the standards.

Aspect A2: Use Of Resources

To comply with the “Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, “Water Law of the People’s Republic of China” and other
applicable laws, regulations and policies, establish conservation ideas
and promote conservation culture, we have stabled a number of
measures and held trainings on the topics of environmental protection
from time to time to promote energy conservation and demand
each employee to understand the impact of their behaviour on the
environment. They are required to make full use of resources, to
maximum their effectiveness and to avoid wastage.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R dHERERHRE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (cContinued) AZD : BIBEER &)

Aspect A2: Use Of Resources (Continued)
The Board had developed 2021 environmental targets for various

EBHEA2 : ERER®)

EXECAAKETRSERHMERNERER

resources consumed during the Group’s factory operation. Details are  &FE T - —FBERE - BT ¢

as follow:
Results as at
the end of
Resources Targets Measures Reporting Year
RBEFE
&R BE it RER
Electricity 1.2% decrease per 10,000RMB of sales 1. Educate all employees about the awareness of energy Target achieved
saving, tun off the lights as they go; operate the machine
reasonably to prevent idling;
2. Adjust the air conditioner to the most power-saving mode
3. Monthly monitor the electricity consumption of various
departments, require large electricity users to explain to the
management in the form of reports, and formulate power-
saving plans for the department;
4. Increase the installation of ventlation fans in the workshop
to maintain ventilation and air circulation, while reducing the
work-load of electric fans;
5. Reduce the unqualified rate of products;
EV FARK10,0007T i E 8 ME1.2% 1. HREETHONEEAYE  RTRE AmREE  EWEE
& iz
2. BEERIsEEREA
3. BRAEASHMAERLR EXAKERERPUREY
ARNEREHR  WABMHIRTHEE
4. AEREMAERNRE  REBEREZZRE  FAE
RO BREBRIERTR
6. MEERIEEE:
Water resources 3% decrease per 10,000RMB of sales 1. Technical transformation of water facilities, wastewater Target achieved
recycling and supenvision, etc., to save water, reduce
resource loss, and reduce sewage discharge;
2. The equipment department regularly inspects and maintains
the company’s water supply system.
KEBR §ARK10,0007T i E 5 ME3% 1 OKFIRERMEGE - BKEWREES - SRORK B ERER

DEREK - WDFREER
2. REWTHRERAEKRGETREREE -
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A2: Use Of Resources (Continued)
Electricity Consumption

During the Reporting Year, the Group’s total electricity consumption was
approximately 6,602,000 KWh (FY2019/20: 5,856,280 kWh), with an
increase of 13%. This was mainly due to the increase in production level
during the Reporting Year. To reduce the Group’s energy consumption
in the offices and factories, the Group actively adopts different kind of
technically feasible and economically reasonable measures, such as
encourage employees to use natural light for daily operations, restricted
use of air conditioners according to seasonal and temperature changes,
regularly clean the air conditioner’s filter and tum off the unnecessary
electrical equipment after work, phasing out old equipment, use the
nationally recognised equipment or equipment with the energy-efficient
labels, focus on the repair and maintenance or transformation of the
electrical equipment, etc. After every employee actively supports the
Group's resource saving policy, despite the increase in electricity
consumption, the electricity intensity has dropped from 1,878.01 kWh
per hundred thousand Hong Kong dollars of Groups’ revenue in
FY 2019/20 to 1,736.96 KWh per hundred thousand Hong Kong dollars
of Groups' revenue in the Reporting Year, a drop of nearly 8%. Looking
ahead, we will continue to upgrade the machines and equipment and
substitute them with the more energy efficient alternatives, such as LED
lighting and appliances with grade 1 energy label. Besides, we will stay
committed to monitoring the electricity consumption of our office and
factory continuously in a bid to cut down our electricity consumption in
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A2: Use Of Resources (Continued)

Water Consumption

During the Reporting Year, although the Group does not encounter
any water supply issue, the Group still shoulders the responsibility
of environmental protection and sustainable development, strives
to increase the utilisation rate of water resources, and reduce the
pressure on the environment. While printing is water-intensive industry
traditionally, we have adopted forward-looking policies and purchased
new machines with waterless printing technology to reduce our water
consumption. Majority of our water consumption depends on our
production volume and customer demands. To minimise the water
consumption, we strengthen the daily repair and maintenance of water
equipment, pipes, valves, etc., and regularly recording and analyzing
the water consumption of each water usage point in the factories.
The Group always encourages the reduction on unnecessary water
consumption. Moreover, we installed wastewater recycle facilities in
our sewage treatment station in order to reduce the water consumption
during our production. Nonetheless, we will continue to monitor our
water consumption level and implement measures to reduce our
consumption in other areas in the future. The Group'’s total water
consumption during the Reporting Year was approximately 60,722 m®
(FY2019/20: 51,026 m?), with an increase of 19%. This could be mainly
attributed to the increased production volume. Even though the water
consumption has increased, instead the intensity of water consumption
of the Reporting Year was 15.98 m® per hundred thousand Hong
Kong dollars of Groups’ Revenue (FY2019/20: 16.36 m® per hundred
thousand Hong Kong dollars of Groups' Revenue), with a decrease of
2% compared with last year.
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A2: Use Of Resources (Continued)
Packaging Material

Due to the nature of printing industry and our business, we did not
collect the data with regard to packaging materials separately, as
they share the same raw materials as our products. Nevertheless, as
mentioned in the “Non-hazardous waste management” section above,
we will prevent unnecessary consumption through accurate estimation
of raw materials needed before placing our purchase order. As for the
excessive materials, some of them will be reused in our production
cycles, while the rest will be collected by external service provider for
recycling purposes.

Paper Material Usage

The Group attached great importance on minimizing the adverse impact
to the climate due to improper logging. The Group always encourages
our customers to use papers coming from sustainable forestry with
Forest Stewardship Council “FSC” label endorsement. On top of that,
we have obtained the FSC Chain-of Custody certification for our usage
of the FSC label on our products. The goal of the FSC system is to
reduce the risk that non-certified material used in the manufacture of
products is linked to practices that harm forests and people. The FSC
system also aims to reduce, and eventually eliminate, those risks over
time by mitigating the problems that underlie these practices. The
source of the materials for the accredited entity, must not come from
illegally harvested wood, wood harvested in violation of traditional and
human rights; wood from forests in which high conservation values
are threatened by management activities; wood from forests being
converted to plantations or non-forest use; and wood from forests in
which genetically modified trees are planted.

During the Reporting Year, the quantity of FSC papers used in our
production increased from 2,423 tonnes in FY2019/20 to 7,725 tonnes
in the Reporting Year, 2 times more than last year while the non-FSC
papers decreased from 15,399 tonnes in FY2019/20 to 13,394 tonnes
in the Reporting Year, a decrease of 13% compared with last year. The
Group will continuous to promote the usage of FSC papers in order to
mitigate the environmental impact due to deforestation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A3: The Environment And Natural
Resources

The printing industry mainly produces VOCs from its production which
has an adverse impact on the atmospheric environment. The Company
believes that corporate development should not come at the expense
of the environment. We have taken into account the environmental
factors in mapping our emission reduction strategies and has actively
responded to changes in the government’s environmental policies.
We continue to optimize the production process, take the best quality
and environmental protection as our development direction, and apply
environmental friendly raw materials to reduce the adverse effects
to the environment from our operations. We have also established
the Environmental Management Operation and Monitoring Control
Procedures (3RIZEIRIETT REAIZEHIFRF") to monitor the pollution
level during its operation, ensuring all emissions are in full compliance
of the environment protection laws and regulation. Besides, the Group
attached great importance on new materials development with an aim
to meet the customer’'s ever-growing needs on their product and also
to reduce the amount of pollutants generated. With our well-established
environmental management system and numerous of experienced
staffs, the Group’s toward sustainable enterprise will be achieved in the
near future.

According to the “Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, “Notice on Deepening the Promotion of Cleaner
Production in Key Enterprises” and “Shenzhen City Cleaner Production
Audit Implementation Rules”, our PRC factory is currently undergoing
the cleaner production audit process. With the aforementioned
measures and our responsible and experienced employees, we deeply
believe that our PRC factory must be able to pass relevant audits and
thereby affirm our continuous efforts in environmental protection.

Aspect A4: Climate Change

Climate change is mainly caused by the release of CO, into the
atmosphere, which is directly and indirectly the result of the use of fossil
fuels (including gasoline and diesel) for energy and electricity generation.
As the world now moves toward a lower-carbon sustainable economy
to remediate the global warming problem, the Group should consider
areas and aspects which may contribute to tackle the problem.
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A4: Climate Change (Continued)

Continuous rise In temperature has caused tremendous changes
in the world’s climate which posed a threat to us on lack of raw
materials because of the forest keeps dwindling from the impact of the
Greenhouse effect on the environment. The Group is currently adopting
a development strategy to exploit new business opportunities and to
reduce the dependence on paper by enriching its product mix. We have
introduced a range of advanced packaging solutions, including variable
data printing (e.g. QR codes, barcodes), RFID packaging for counterfeit
prevention, and “Audioposters” which embeds Bluetooth chips into
promotional items.

Some regions in the PRC, including the operating location of our PRC
factory, are under the threat of flood, fire, hurricanes or epidemics.
The natural disasters might be intensified by the climate changes. The
Group has taken into account and taken preventive measures in order
to manage the above threats. We have established the emergency plan
for environmental emergencies (‘23 IREEHEZTEZR") and bought
relevant insurance policy to reduce the losses from natural disasters.
Besides, we actively promote the principle of conservation on resources
usage among our employees to reduce the Group's adverse impacts
on the environment and to ourself.

SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND
LABOUR PRACTICES

Aspect B1: Employment

Qur Group believe that the success of the Company relies on the
contribution and support from our talented employees. Our human
resources policies and procedures, including recruitment, probation,
termination, promotion, retirement, transfer, appraisal, working hours,
salary, bonus, entitled leave and medical benefits, comply with the
relevant legislation in Hong Kong and Shenzhen.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND
LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

Aspect B1: Employment (Continued)

As at 30 June 2021, we had 971 employees, in which male comprised
59% and female comprised 41%. Our employees spread over a wide
range of age group from 18 to over 65. Our employees are under
different types of employment, with 17% of the employees (169
employees) are with contract of indefinite duration, 52% of employees
(505 employees) are contracted employees, 28% of the employees
(272 employees) are temporary workers and 3% of employees (25
employees) are re-employed retirees. Guided by the non-discrimination
principle, we offered same opportunities to all employees regardless of
their age. Among our employees, over 16% of them contributed for the
Group over 10 years. It indicated that most of the employees were loyal
to the Group due to our mature human resources policy and trustful
relationships.

Staff Compositions as at 30 June 2021

Total Workforce By Gender
BMRESISRITHEY
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND
LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

Aspect B1: Employment (Continued)

Employee Benefits

We have established well-structed monthly performance evaluation
mechanism with different KPIs in different areas to all staff for
assessment in order to award well-performed staff and talented
workforce. The management regularly reviews the Group’s
remuneration and benefits policies with reference to the market
standards and is committed to safeguarding the rights and interests of
the employees. The employee performance assessment is conducted
every year end. Remuneration and benefits will be adjusted on an
annual basis in accordance with the employees’ individual performance,
contribution and market conditions in the performance assessment with
the employees.

Promotion decisions are made based on careful consideration of job
responsibilities together with each individual's qualifications, relevant
experience and performance, conduct and potential with the Group.
Promotion and salary increment are rewarded to all contributing staff.

Besides, the Group encourages work-life balance and establish
the benefit scheme for our employees in PRC and Hong Kong in
accordance with the labour law of PRC and Hong Kong. The Group has
also offered entertainment facilities for leisure and entertainment during
non-working hours.

Moreover, the Group actively organizes large-scale cultural and sports
activities during the festivals for employees in PRC. The Group also
organizes different competition and team building activities to enrich
the employees’ spare time and enrich the sense of belonging of the
employees

Furthermore, regardless of the COVID-19, the Group has not
terminated any employee and reduced employees’ salary, subsidies
and benefits. The PRC government advocates the migrant workers
staying in workplace for the Chinese New Year in 2021, the Group
also encouraged all migrant workers to stay in the factory and provided
subsidy for the migrant workers who stay in the factory for the Chinese
New Year.

56 SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED 37 S El Bl 42 iz /5 PR A 7]

BIfn : HE—EREEZEILER @)
EmEB1 : EE @)

EEEF

RIIRT = EH T A RIETMS] - R E A
ARBRERIRIESTIRMEET - UWEHRELE
WETIREAEET - SREBELETSDETHR
SAEENFIREREE - YBRERES 0
FIR i - BERBTIRNEEFERLET - FBR
EHSERESNEARE EBRNTZESR
BENTREERE -

AEEEREREETERENERZEENER
MHREEBREERE (TRAREASENERE N
HEBEHTHERTE - ARBEUTTRINFQHRAE
REBEEHERMNET -

IESI - ANER B BB TR R A0 T - WARBF B K
FRNS DEGIREMNEBRIIENFE - AE
BRI RS RRIE - (B B IE TR RDH R RAR

@ o

FO - NEEER T B EB N B REARX
EREEED - REETERTRLLERBKEZR
EE AEEBTEHRAENMNRESNEER -

BE - BECOVD- 19I5 - AEERBKRIEM
BINEREBENKREESNFS « @R REF -
PR FIRIEIINES TR B - —F 2 BHFEIRH
BHEI (W AEENSEAAIINRETEET
W WHREBHEBELRAINRSE TR
ff o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND
LABOUR PRACTICES (continued)

Aspect B1: Employment (Continued)

Employee Benefits (Continued)

The Group provides employees with various insurance coverage
under statutory requirements. For staff in Hong Kong, contribution
to Mandatory Fund Schemes Ordinance, Employees Compensation
Ordinance according to the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong). For staff in the PRC, the Group
has contributed to the Social Insurance and Housing Provident Fund in
compliance with the local rules and regulations in the PRC.

We will take all measures to combat the challenge of attracting and
retaining talented workforce. We care our employees, and we are in the
process of enhancing our human resources system, which employees
are able to empress their opinion on the platform anonymously.

Harmonious Working Environment

The Group strives to build a harmonious and inclusive working
environment, free from any harassment and discrimination. The Group
promotes understanding and awareness of Non-Discrimination, Anti-
Harassment and Non-Bully Policies by communicating these in the
team meetings and in the human resources policy. The Group strives
to ensure equal employment opportunity for all employees, regardless
of their race, colour, religion, age, gender, sexual orientation, national
origin, citizenship, disability, marital status or any other characteristics
protected by law. The Group prohibits the use of any child labour and
forced labour.

For the Reporting Year, the Group has not found any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations in respect of the labour
standards.

Talent Retention

Printing Is a traditional business, and the staff turnover rate is relatively
high in this industry. Our staff turnover rate was approximately 11%
for the Reporting Year (FY2019/20: 7%). The reason for the increase
in staff turnover rate was mainly due to temporary workers from some
Human Resources Agencies were employed during the period from
January 2021 to June 2021 to handle the increases in production
demand. During the Reporting Year, the employee turnover rate by age
group were 14 % (18 — 25 years old), 14% (26 — 35 years old), 7% (36
— 45 years old), 12% (46 — 55 years old), 3% (56 — 65 years old); the
employee turnover rate by gender were 12% (Male) and 11% (Female).
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND
LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

Aspect B2: Health And Safety

The Group used a systematic approach to safeguard the health and
safety of our employees by identifying and mitigating the potential office
safety risks and equipping with sufficient fire precaution equipment.
Safety procedures have been included in the staff handbook for
guidance. Employees must report to their supervisors immediately if
there is any accident.

Moreover, the Group believes preventive measures are more important
than reactive measures. The Group has provided with protective
equipment such as earplug, rubber gloves and carbon mask for
protection of employees’ health and safety during operation in the
factory plant. The Group has also engaged third party inspection
agency for regular inspection on the occupational hazards in the
working environment for the factory in the PRC. The Group keens
to fulfill the statutory requirements such as the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
Management Specification for Regular Detection of Occupational
Hazard Factors in Employers (‘"FAAA BB EREEREZEH
BAEIBIRE") etc., and also aims to continuously improve the
working environment in the factory after the regular inspection on the
occupational hazards. During the Reporting Year, we entrusted a third
party inspection agency to perform testing on the each production
positions regarding to the occupational exposure, including dust,
VOC, noise and radiation. The testing result of dust, VOC and radiation
complied with the “Occupational Exposure Limits for Hazardous
Agents in the Workplace - Part 1: Chemical Hazardous Agents” and
“Occupational Exposure Limits for Hazardous Agents in the Workplace -
Part 1: Physical Agents”. For the occupational exposure of noise, there
were 5 production positions excessed the standard limits. The Group
had already arranged the workers at those positions to perform a body
check in order to confirm our employees’ health. All workers from those
positions did not suffer from any occupational diseases. The Group will
continue to pay attention to the health of employees, regularly arrange
occupational disease examinations, and arrange suitable positions for
employees according to their health conditions to prevent employees
from being injured by occupational diseases at work.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND
LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

Aspect B2: Health And Safety (Continued)

Moreover, the Group has set up the Environmental, Health and
Safety Committee ("EHS Committee”) for monitoring, inspecting and
improving the environment, health and safety related facilities. The EHS
Committee members are responsible to avoid the risks of worker injury
and unexpected accidents from happening. Fire drill and chemical spill
drill are held regularly by the EHS Committee in order to employees
familiarize with the evacuation procedures.

The Group provided induction trainings to our staff regarding the
responsiveness to emergencies. The training encompassed a wide
range of topics, including anti-terrorism training, fire safety, dangerous
goods management, protective apparatus management, and safety
production knowledge. Apart from the induction training, we also
organized regular training to strengthen mind-set of employees on
safety issues. For the Reporting Year, there were 12 people involved
in work related injury cases, and a total of 573.5 hours of lost working
hours were recorded.

The Group will continuously promote occupational health and safety to
all employees and avoid work injury or accidents.

Aspect B3: Development And Training

QOur Group provides internal training session to all the newly joined staff,
so that they can understand the vision and mission of the Company.
On-job trainings are provided to all employees so that they can
understand the latest technology on printing. For the Reporting Year,
our Group provided trainings to 2,497 staff, and we have recorded total
training hours for 4,994 hours. The percentage of trained employees
by employment category of entry level employees, middle management
and senior management are 100% for all levels. The percentage by
gender of trained employees is 556% for men and 45% for women
respectively.
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND
LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

Aspect B4: Labour Standard

Respecting human rights has been an integral part of the Group’s
approach to sustainability. The Group fully complies with labour laws
and other relevant legislation that prohibits child labour and forced
labour. The Group does not employ any person below the age of
eighteen at its workplace by verifying the applicant’s identification
documents in the recruitment process to prevent illegal labour. Any
violence, with the purpose of deliberately causing difficulties, threats
and/or corporal punishment, forcing employees to work is prohibited.
Prior consent from employees for overtime work are required and no
employees are forced to work against their will. Besides, Worker Union
is set up to provide an effective communication channel for the Group
and management to understand the needs of our employees. The
Group strives to ensure that no employee is forced to work against
his/her will, or work as forced labour, or be made subject to corporal
punishment or coercion of any type relating to work. The Group regularly
reviews its employment practice to ensure that are in full compliance
with the Employment Ordinance and other regulations related to child
labour and forced labour.

For the Reporting Year, the Group fully complied with the statutory
requirements in Hong Kong and PRC, including the Mandatory Fund
Schemes Ordinance, Inland Revenue Ordinance, the Minimum Wages
Ordinance, the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and other relevant
laws and regulations.

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
Establishing a successful and beneficial relationship with supplier
was one of our objectives. We formed strategic alliance with our
suppliers, so that we can obtain the raw material with best quality
and at a reasonable price. We cooperated with 68 suppliers, which
a geographic distribution of 31 in the PRC, 35 in Hong Kong, 1 in
Germany and 1 in Vietnam. We have conducted supplier assessment
to new suppliers before engagement with the new suppliers. Our Group
assessed the supplier based on several criteria, including the aspect of
operation flow control, management hierarchy, quality control, material
control, environmental control, energy conservation policies. As product
quality is always our top priority, we only pick those suppliers who can
fulfil our requirements and service commitment. We are also aware of
the suppliers on the environmental aspect and pick those suppliers put
emphasis in environmental control.

We will closely monitor the performance of our suppliers to ensure it
is consistent with its service commitment regularly with the aid of our
annual supplier assessment plan.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND
LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

Product Safety

The Group is committed to providing products and services with high
standard of quality and reliability. We have been awarded the following
certificates:

. Certificate of “Good Manufacturing Practices”
° ISO9001: 2015 “Quality Management System Certificate”

° The international Council of Toy Industries-Code of Business
Practices

The Group strictly adheres to the applicable laws and regulations
relating to product/services responsibility in Hong Kong such as Sale
of Good Ordinance (Chapter 26 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Consumer Goods Safety Ordinance (Chapter 4566 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). For the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations related to product
responsibility nor any our products being recalled.

Customer Complaints
The Group has also conducted customer satisfaction survey every
half-yearly and awarded with satisfactory reply from the customers
participated in the survey.

Besides, the Group has adopted a set of customer communication
policy as the Group places huge importance on the customers’
feedbacks. Moreover, customer complaints are of greatest concemn
to our Group. We will follow up the complaints closely and middle
and senior management will also be involved to resolve the customer
complaints. The Group has established a Product Recall Control
Procedures. In case of any finished products are found with possible
defects, the Group can recall the defective products from the
customers immediately to avoid customer complaints.

For the Reporting Year, there were no cases of complaints. For the
Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any material legal dispute
and customer complaints in Hong Kong.
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND
LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility (Continued)
Intellectual Property Right

The Company acknowledged the importance of intellectual property
rights. For the customer's design and intellectual property, the Group
takes all practicable steps and measures to ensure that data collected
from the customers are well protected and at all times.

The Company applied RFID, NFC and Real QR Code technology to
collect information for marketing initiatives. To address the confidentiality
issue regarding recipient information, all the information was stored in
the cloud senvice. For the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of
any complaints or non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
related to the use, holding and processing of such information or
personal data from customers.

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

The Group has zero tolerance of anti-corruption and bribery. The Group
has adopted a set of anti-corruption policy to ensure compliance
by all employees, officers and directors of the Group. Employees
should not solicit or accept any advantage for themselves. Directors
and staff should avoid any conflicts of interest situation, at which their
private interest conflicts with the Group'’s interest. Regular trainings on
anti-corruption are provided to all employees regularly to enrich the
knowledge regarding moral business ethnics and the importance of
anti-corruption.

A whistle blowing policy is applicable to all employees of the Group.
The purpose of formulating the whistle blowing policy is to increase
the awareness of maintaining internal corporate justice. It provides all
the employees of the Group with reporting channels and guidance on
whistle blowing. Our management will review and take follow-up actions
to investigate every suspected misconduct case raised by the whistle
blowing mechanism.

For the Reporting Year, the Group there was not aware of any
misconduct and any material non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations related to anti-corruption.
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R dHERERHRE

SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND B%% : t2—{EEREIER@)
LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

Aspect B8: Community Investment [EEB8 : tERE

As a socially responsible Company, we are actively engaged in  fEA—REMHEHERNAT - RAETIR G
ongoing community and charity work. In the Reporting Year, the Group ~ BRMZEZTIE - WREFEE - AEFLBETAH
participated in total of 160 hours of volunteering work with 40 of our — 160/NEEIERFETE - HBA0REEZINER - I
employees joined. In the forthcoming vear, we will continue to expand ~ FEE @ RIFSEELRXRTZHREH - ALt eIE

community activities to serve the interest of the society. HIEHERL o
ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RIBHIE
Year ended Year ended
A1. Emissions of PRC factory Unit 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
BE-Z--F HE_ZT-ZTF
Al FEITRHK By ARAZTHLFE RA=THILFE
Air emissions kg 571 456
ERHEB NI
Nitrogen Oxides kg 519 414
REND NI
Sulphur Oxides kg 1 1
=Kl @2 NIy
Respiratory Suspended Particles kg 51 41
AR AR E R NIy
Intensity kg/HK$00000 0.15 0.15
BE N/ tEET
Greenhouse gas emissions tonnes 4,297 3,630°
BEREER 3
Scope 1  Emissions from Fossil Fuel Consumption tonnes 155 127
& 1 REACARRELEREIHERL R
Scope 1  Emission from the Use of Refrigerant tonnes 76 Nil
EE 1 REF RSB 7
Scope 2  Emissions from Electricity Consumption tonnes 4,028 3,462
gE 2 REE BT I3
Scope 3 Emissions from Paper Waste Disposed of at Landfills tonnes 8 9
&E 3 REEEREE R REREER R
Scope 3  Emissions from Water and Sewage Processing tonnes 30 31
&E 3 RE BRI K5 KA HERR i
Scope 3  Emissions from Employee Business Air Travel tonnes Nil #& 1
&E 3 REREBBBMZEEROPER 7
Intensity tonnes/HK$'00000 1.13 1.16
BE g,/ +EHT

e Last corresponding year's GHG emissions comparative figures are 3 BRENEEZEZ2HVAN - B&EY F— AL ESE
restated to conform with current year's presentation. ERRERES LB EUE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL DATA (Continued) RIBEE @
Hazardous waste tonnes 10 12
BEREY 17
Intensity tonnes/HK$'00000 0.003 0.004
e W/ +EET
Non-hazardous waste tonnes 3,031 2,832
BEBEEY A
Disposed at landfills tonnes 53 52
EREENEER 7
Recycled tonnes 2,978 2,780
B E 7
Intensity tonnes/HK$'00000 0.80 0.91
e W/ TEET
Sewage tonnes 49,941 45,285
DEPN 7
Intensity tonnes/HK$' 00000 13.14 14.52
BE W/ +EET
Year ended Year ended
A2, Use of Resources Unit 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
BE-E--F HE-ZT-TH
A2. BRER By KRAZTHLFE RA=THLFE
Electricity consumption KWh 6,602,000 5,856,280
EPabict:2 TRE
Intensity KWh/HK$'00000 1,736.96 1,878.01
BE THRE/+&BT
Water consumption m?3 60,722 51,026
RKH#E SR
Intensity m/HK$'00000 15.98 16.36
BE NIRRT EET
Gasoline consumption L 8,537 8,675
FRHERE #
Intensity L/HK$'00000 2.25 2.78
BE ./ TEET
Diesel consumption L 49,961 43,757
SohERE #
Intensity L/HK$'00000 13.14 14.03
HE ft/+EsT
Raw material consumption tonnes 21,119 17,822
R RUEFE I
FSC tonnes 7,725 2423
RANEREZESRE i
Non-FSC tonnes 13,394 15,399
RETHERZELRHE 58
Refrigerant consumption kg 62 Nil £
B BERE NIy
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SOCIAL DATA HEEE
Year ended Year ended
B. Social 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
BE-2-—-F BHE-ZT-ZF
B. #& ARB=tTHLEE RA=+TALEE
Total number of employees EE & 971 738
By Gender 215 27
Male B1% 573 373
Female 2% 398 365
By age group & F AR 25|
Under 18 185 AT Nil & Nil £
1810 25 182 255% 332 233
26 to0 35 262 355% 279 189
36 to 45 362 455% 280 206
46 10 55 46 =558 46 93
56 to 65 56 E655%, 29 14
65 or above 65mEA £ 5 3
Health and Safety Indicators #2ER L2512
Number of reported injuries 2 IS8+ 12 9
Number of lost hours ATk SR 573.5 2416.5
Development and Training Indicators %8 & 1Z3|151E
Total number of hours of intemal training received by employees 1& 8 R EB1% 4285 21 4,994 9,046
Average hours of training per employee B4 & 8 F1915 38k 5.14 5.08
Total training hours per employee by employee category
EEAHEINE(RESERZ)
Eniry Level ¥14% 3,868 7,786
Middle Management R & 32 [E 826 911
Senior Management & &8 8 300 349
% of trained employee by employment category
EEIEEE A (RERERIZS)
Entry level #14% 100% 100%
Middle level 7 4% 100% 100%
Management level & 32 E 4% 100% 100%
% of trained employee by gender B2 |EEF DL (M FIZ25)
Men B4 55% N/A i A
Women %% 45% N/A N A
Supply Chain Indicators #tfEHEIEE
Total number of suppliers f FE R 4281 68 44
Product Responsibility Indicators &R E{FI5E
Total number of products subject to recalls for safety and health reason Nil & Nil £
HZ 2 R R m/ARNAEDEBE
Total number of compliants received R 3f 422K Nil £ Nil £
Total number of legal dispute case JERZAHN R 14445 Nil & Nil 4
Anti-corruption Indicators K &553512
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its Nil & Nil £
employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of cases
RIS BERBETASEEERETERENESFARHHE RFALER
Community Indicators # BIEE
Corporate charitable donation 7> %% & 188) Nil & Nil &
Employee volunteering (number of hours) & 8 3 7% T {81 160 Nil £
Number of employee volunteer 2514 T1E 2 (B8 AB 40 Nil £
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company during the year was investment
holding.

The principal activities of the Group during the year consisted of
investment holding and the sale and manufacture of printing products.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and a review in the business activities of the Group,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties faced
by the Group and an indication of the likely future development of the
Group’s business, are set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 3
to 4 and pages 6 to 16 of this annual report, respectively. Certain key
performance indicators, a discussion on the Group’s environment
policies and performance and its compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations, and an account of the Group’s relationship with its
key stakeholders are included in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis”, These discussions form part of this “Report of the Directors”.

In addition, the financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are shown in note 32 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year and the Company’s and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 90 to 168.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK4.0
cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders on the
register of members on 15 December 2021.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
COMPANY'’S INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING
For details, please refer to the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 14 to 16 of this annual report.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the Group’s financial information for the last five financial
years is set out on page 2 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital during the year are set out in
note 25 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of our directors were interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Neither the Group nor the Company had any connected transactions
and/or continuing connected transactions as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules during the year. The related party transactions
disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements are
exempted continuing connected transactions.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which could
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and in
note 26 to the financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2021, the Company's reserves available for distribution
amounted to HK$480,882,000 (2020: HK$479,833,000), calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. In addition, the Company's share premium of HK$479,712,000
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

ESEWRE
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Al 2k {8
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme on 9
QOctober 2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”). No share option has been
granted since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and there
was no share option outstanding as at 30 June 2021. The terms of the

Share Option Scheme are set out below.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme enables our Company
to grant options to the eligible persons as incentives or rewards
for their contributions to our Group.

Participants
The Board may, at its discretion, invite any eligible persons to take
up options.

Total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of all the shares in issue as at the date of
listing (i.e., a total of 48,000,000 shares representing 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report).

Maximum entitlement of each participant
The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company, in
any 12 months’ period up to the date of grant, shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

Terms of subscription of shares upon
exercise of the options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of
grant.

Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum period for
which an option must be held before an option can be exercised.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(g) Time of acceptance and the amount
payable on acceptance of the option
An offer for the grant of option must be accepted within twenty-
eight days from the date on which the option is granted. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

Basis for determination the exercise
price

The exercise price for any share under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price determined by the Board and notified to each
grantee (in the letter containing the offer of the grant of the option)
and shall not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i)
the nominal value of a share at the date of grant.

(h)

No share option has been granted since the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme and there was no share option outstanding as at 30
June 2021.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme of the Company as disclosed
above, there is no equity-linked agreement that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares or require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were
entered into by the Company during the year ended 30 June 2021 or
subsisted as at 30 June 2021.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group'’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 83% of the total sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 50%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 35% of the total purchases for the year and purchase
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to 9%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group'’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. CHAN Peter Tit Sang

Mr. CHAN Kenneth Chi Kin

Mr. CHAN Chi Ming

Mr. CHAN Chun Sang Desmond

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. NG Sze Yuen Terry

Dr. CHU Po Kuen Louis

Mr. HO Yuk Chi (Resigned on 30 September 2020)
Mr. WONG Kam Fai (Appointed on 1 October 2020)

In accordance with article 108(a) of the Company’s articles of
association, one-third of the directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number of directors
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at
the general meeting at which a director retires may fill the vacated office.

Each of Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin, Mr. Chan Chun Sang Desmond and
Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis will retire at the Annual General Meeting ("AGM”)
and all of them, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from

Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry, Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis and Mr. Wong Kam Fali,
and as at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.

*for identification purpose only
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang (FR#i4), aged 77, was appointed as a
Director on 17 January 2017 and was designated as the chairman and
executive Director on 18 January 2017. Mr. Peter Chan is responsible
for managing the overall operations and business strategic planning of
our Group. Mr. Peter Chan founded our Group in the late 1970s and
has over 39 years of experience in the printing industry. Mr. Peter Chan
has completed form five education.

Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin (FREER), aged 48, was appointed as a
Director on 17 January 2017 and was designated as the chief executive
officer of our Group and executive Director on 18 January 2017. He is
responsible for formulating business strategies and overseeing general
performance of our Group, in particular the Group's sales and marketing
activities, internal audit function and information technology initiatives.
He has over 18 years of experience in the printing industry and over 25
years of experience in sales and marketing. After joining our Group in
May 2003, he has been primarily responsible for formulating business
strategies and overseeing the general performance of our Group. He
was a committee member of the 10th Zhaoging Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference* (FREIA R
BAHEEREEMETEZES) from 2012 10 2017. He is also an
honorary chairman of the board of directors of the Zhaoging Overseas
Fraternal Association* (EEESINSHEEE NEEEEREER) M.
Kenneth Chan was also a director of the 3rd board of directors of the
Hong Kong GuangFoZhao Fraternity Association* (& i &8 52
BeEZREESE) from 2017 to 2020. Mr. Kenneth Chan was a
member of the Entrepreneurs’ Organisation — Hong Kong Chapter
Limited (BB B EDEZRHE AR A F) from 2005 to 2015. He was a
YPO Beijing member of the Young Presidents’ Organisation — Beijing
Chapter (BEF#HME RN E) from 2014 to 2019, which he has
also joined as a YPO Pearl River Delta member of the Young Presidents’
Organization — Pearl River Delta Chapter (EF @R EHR=AD
@) since 2017. He has also been admitted to the Institute of Print-
Media Professionals (ENRI#EEE 3 A B#HE) as an Honorary Fellow
since June 2018. He is also a member of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries (B8 L4 E) since October 2018. He is also a member
of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce (B8 427 E) since
January 2020. Mr. Kenneth Chan completed his second year of studies
in computer science at the University of British Columbia in Canada in
1995,

*for identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES (continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Chan Chun Sang Desmond (BR& %), aged 73, was
appointed as a Director on 17 January 2017 and was designated as
an executive Director on 18 January 2017. Mr. Desmond Chan is
responsible for overseeing the daily operations of our Group in Hong
Kong. Mr. Desmond Chan joined our Group in the late 1970s and has
over 38 years of experience in the printing industry. Mr. Desmond Chan
has completed form five education.

Mr. Chan Chi Ming (& 8H), aged 65, was appointed as a Director
on 17 January 2017 and was designated as an executive Director on
18 January 2017. Mr. Chan Chi Ming is responsible for overseeing the
daily operations of our PRC production facilities. He joined our Group in
the late 1970s upon completion of his form five education in Hong Kong
and has over 38 years of experience in the printing industry.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry (Rt Jt), aged 61, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 9 October 2017. Mr. Ng has
over 30 years of experience in operations and management and is
now the chief executive officer and an executive director of L'AVENUE
International Holdings Limited, a private company in Hong Kong, and
his responsibilities include strategic planning, financial investments,
management of property development and investment portfolios,
both in Hong Kong and overseas. He is currently an Independent
Non-executive Director of China New City Commercial Development
Limited (stock code: 1321), and International Housewares Retail
Company Limited (stock code: 1373), companies of which shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

He served as an executive director of Hang Lung Group Limited (stock
code: 010), Hang Lung Properties Limited (stock code: 101) and
Giordano International Limited (stock code: 709), companies of which
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He also
worked at the Stock Exchange and held various positions.

Mr. Ng is a fellow member of CPA Australia. He obtained a master's
degree in business administration from Asia International Open
University (Macau) (currently known as City University of Macau) in
November 1995 and a bachelor degree in commerce majoring in
accounting and finance systems from the University of New South
Wales in April 1985.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis (5K7&#), aged 73, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director on 9 October 2017. Dr. Chu
is currently a registered medical practitioner in Hong Kong with over
30 years of experience in medicine. In January 1973, he joined the
Medical & Health Department of the Hong Kong Government as a
medical and health officer. In September 1984, he was transferred to
the Accident & Emergency Department of the Prince of Wales Hospital
and was promoted to senior medical & health officer in May 1986. Dr.
Chu was also a medical superintendent of Tung Wah Hospital between
June 1981 and February 1982 and a medical superintendent of the
Prince of Wales Hospital between August 1989 and February 1990. He
was also actively involved in the setting up of the Accident & Emergency
Department of the Prince of Wales Hospital in 1984 and the Accident &
Emergency Information System at Queen Elizabeth Hospital in 1994. Dr.
Chu joined the Hospital Authority in December 1991 until his retirement
in July 2003 and was an adviser of service transformation of the
Accident & Emergency Department of Queen Elizabeth Hospital through
his membership in the Departmental Consultative Committee. Dr. Chu
obtained degrees of Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery from
the University of Hong Kong in November 1972,

Mr. Ho Yuk Chi ({8i#), aged 77, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 9 October 2017. Mr. Ho has
extensive experience in education, trading and management. He
has over 30 years of experience in the education sector. Mr. Ho was
employed by the Society of Boys' Centres Chak Yan Centre School
from September 1983 to January 1994, with his last position being the
principal of the school. Since January 1994, Mr. Ho has been serving
as the managing director of Wiseville International Limited, a company
primarily engaged in the trading of wine and glassware. At the moment
he is also holding the post of director in Wiseville (Asia-Pacific) Limited,
which was incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Ho obtained the certificate
of teachers in Northcote Training College in 1963 and the certificate for
teachers of maladjusted and socially deprived children issued by the
Hong Kong Education Department in April 1982 and a Bachelor of Arts
degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1992,
Mr. Ho has also contributed to the Hong Kong Special Schools Council
and served in various positions, including honorary deputy secretary
and vice-chairman, from 1985 to 1993.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Mr. Ho was the director of the following company which was
incorporated in Hong Kong and was deregistered, the details of which
are as follows:

Company name

DEEHE EBMEED

Nature of business/proceedings

EENRSAEEERBE @)
BIFHITEE#
AR4ESEITHARZES  ZEQAFADRE
SEEMA ST D EUYEM - ST

Date of deregistration

HUH M B 34

Casa Gaudi Limited
(R=EBRAT)
REEBRAR

Mr. Ho confirmed that there have been no claims against him in
relation to the above-mentioned company that was deregistered,
and the above-mentioned company was solvent at the time of being
deregistered. No material non-compliant incidents, claims, litigation
or legal proceedings are indicated to involve the above-mentioned
company.

Mr. Ho resigned as an independent Non-executive Director on 30
September 2020.

Mr. Wong Kam Fai (Z$8#8), aged 77, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 1 October 2020. He obtained
a Bachelor degree of Science from the University at Alberta in Canada.
Alfter graduation, he went back to Hong Kong and worked briefly in the
government as an Executive Officer. In 1969, he started his long career
with the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a statutory organization
responsible for promoting Hong Kong's external trade. In his more than
30 years of service with the Council, he acquired extensive experience
working both in Hong Kong and overseas including Los Angeles,
Chicago, Dallas, New York, Panama, Paris, London, etc. He retired from
the Council in 2010 as its Deputy Executive Director.

He soon joined the China-United States Exchange Foundation in
November 2010 as its Executive Director. The Foundation is a Hong
Kong based non-profit organization established in 2008 to promote
positive relationship and better understanding between China and the
United States of America. In that capacity he created and managed a
comprehensive program to enable the peoples of the two countries
from all walks of life including academic, students, politicians,
researchers, officials, media and businessmen to better understand
each other. He retired from the Foundation in 2018 and has been invited
Py its board to be its Special Advisor since.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES (Continued)
Senior Management

Mr. Tang Shichun (Eitt#), aged 571, is the deputy general manager
of Tung Pak Printing (Shenzhen) Company Limited and is responsible
for overseeing the production activities. He has over 25 years of
experience in printing services and management. Prior to joining our
Group in 1997, he had around four years of experience in Hebei Xintai
Ruikai Printing Limited* (R[3t& B A MRSV EIBEER A F) as an
apprentice and his last position held was a supervisor of the printing
plate department (ENRIRZBFIEESE). He obtained a certificate (A%}
£3) of printing technology™ (BN from the Beijing Institute of
Graphic Communication* (3£ TR ENRIEEET) in July 1992.

Mr. Chan Chiu Ning (FREiZ8), aged 58, is the deputy general
manager of Sun Hing Printing Company Limited and is responsible for
operations and human resources management. He has over 22 years
of experience in the manufacturing industry. Prior to joining our Group
in July 2002, he had been a supervisor of the customer clearance
department in Solid Company Limited for over seven years. Mr. Chan
has completed his high school education in the PRC.

Company Secretary

Ms. Ng Yin Ting Joyce (R #1F) aged 33, was appointed as
the company secretary of our Company on 18 January 2017 and is
responsible for the company secretarial matters of our Group. She
has been an assistant vice president of AE Majoris Advisory Company
Limited since September 2013. She worked for Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from October 2009 to March 2013 with her last position
as a senior auditor. Ms. Ng obtained a bachelor's degree of business
administration in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in
July 2009. She has been admitted as a certified public accountant of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since March
2013,

In view of Ms. Ng's experience in legal and company secretarial
functions and with stock exchange rules and regulations, our Directors
believe that Ms. Ng has the appropriate expertise for the purposes of
Rule 8.17 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

* for identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company's Board
of Directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association and subject to the
provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, every director
or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for directors and
officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements, or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The controlling shareholders as defined in the Listing Rules and, in the
context of the Company, meaning Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang, Mr. Chan
Kenneth Chi Kin, Mr. Desmond Chan, Mr. Chan Chi Ming, Goody
Luck Limited and Goody Capital Limited (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”), have entered into the deed of non-competition dated
9 October 2017 (the "Deed of Non-competition”) in favour of the
Company, details of which were set out in the Prospectus dated 2
November 2017. Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, each of
the Controlling Shareholders has undertaken to the Company that
with effect from the Listing Date, they shall, and shall procure that their
respective close associates and/or companies controlled by them
(other than our Group) shall not, directly or indirectly, be interested or
involved or engaged in, or acquire or hold any right or interest (in each
case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and whether
for profit, reward or otherwise) in any business which is or is about to
be engaged in any business which competes or is likely to compete
directly or indirectly with the businesses currently and from time to time
engaged by our Group (including the business as a printing service
provider).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed to the Company by
written confirmations that from the Listing Date and up to the date
of the Annual Report 2020/2021, they and their respective close
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) have complied with
the undertakings contained in the Deed of Non-competition. For the
year ended 30 June 2021 and up to the date of the Annual Report
2020/2021, save and except for the interest that the Directors have in
the Company and its subsidiaries, none of the Directors, the Controlling
Shareholders or their respective close associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) had any business or interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest with the Group.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors had reviewed the written
confirmations and the status of compliance and confirmed that each of
the Controlling Shareholders of the Company have complied with the
non-competition undertaking and the non-competition undertaking has
been enforced by the Company in accordance with its terms.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

A. Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and/or short positions in shares and
underlying shares of the Company
As at 30 June 2021, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQO"), which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), are set out
below:
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continue
A. Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and/or short positions in shares and

underlying shares of the Company

(Continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company or any of its

associated corporations

= Em)
A. EERTHRABRAQITARSG RHE
RO ZERZR,

R ()

RAEQARREEAEBEZERD 2FA

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s

or any of its
associated
Company/ Number and corporations’
name of associated Nature of interest class of total issued
Name of director company and capacity securities share capital
EARDRHEE
A AR £ B 2 26
F N BHEYAR ERITRAK
BExps BHAREE ERHERSH Hhl BAESL
Chan Peter Tit Sang The Company Interest in a controlled 360,000,000 75%
corporation (Note 1) (Note 2) shares
FoR 8 4 AN REEEE R 360,000,000
(MiaE1)(Hiate) A A% 17
Goody Luck Limited Beneficial owner 986 shares of 98.6%
("Goody Luck") US$1.00 each
ExRBEBA o086k B E A
1,00 T 2 IR 5
Chan Kenneth ChiKin -~ The Company Interest in a controlled 360,000,000 75%
corporation (Note 1) (Note 2) shares
RER /NG| REEZE R 360,000,000
(Hist1)(mzt2) AR A £
Goody Luck Beneficial owner 14 shares of 1.4%
US$1.00 each
ERBEREA 148 Bk EE
1.00% 7T 2 R
Goody Capital Limited Beneficial owner 1 share of 33.3%
("Goody Capital”) US$1.00
E=nEAA 1RRE(E
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (

ESEWRE

EREw

A. Directors’ and chief executive’s interests A. EERTHRAZNELQXTAREG R

and/or short positions in shares and EROZEER, AR &)
underlying shares of the Company

(Continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company or any of its RAATSLEEMAEBREIERD 2T (&)

associated corporations (Continued)

Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s
or any of its
associated
Company/ Number and corporations’
name of associated Nature of interest class of total issued
Name of director company and capacity securities share capital
EARDRHEE
fEE LB 2
KAT/ BEYAR ERITRA
BExps BHAR SR EEMtERSH Ehl BOBS
Chan Chi Ming The Company Interest in a controlled 360,000,000 75%
corporation (Note 1) (Note 2) shares
BRER ARA] R EE s 360,000,000
(Bat1)(Hiat2) A s £
Goody Capital Beneficial owner 1 share of 33.3%
US$1.00
ERBEBEA 1RREE
1.00% T2 R’ 1H
Chan Chun Sang The Company Interest in a controlled 360,000,000 75%
Desmond corporation (Note 1) (Note 2) shares
REE ARA] RE LR s 360,000,000
(Bist1)(Hiat2) A s £
Goody Capital Beneficial owner 1 share of 338.3%
US$1.00
ERBEBEA 1RREE
1.00% T2 R’ 1H
Notes: Hiet -
1. The Company is owned as to 54.8% by Goody Luck and 1. REBEERNMEBETRROEE EKE (K

20.2% by Goody Capital immediately after the completion of the
capitalisation issue and the share offer (without taking into account
any of the shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise
of the over-allotment option and the options that may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme). Goody Luck is owned as to
98.6% by Mr. Peter Chan and 1.4% by Mr. Kenneth Chan, and
Goody Capital is owned as to 33.3% by Mr. Desmond Chan,
33.3% by Mr. Chan Chi Ming and 33.3% by Mr. Kenneth Chan.

AT K R B 5E A AR R R AR BE B AR A AT & AT
e BB R T ] R B B I B
TH ARG ) + A2 8 B Goody Luck
% 5 54.8% % = & H Goody Capital % &
20.2%HE25 » Goody Luckrh PR 4 5% 4
E08.6%HEm MHRERILERE 4%
%% » MGoody Capital l|ABREL LA A
33.83% * APREBASE EHEA33.3% R BHR
EEREEHBEI3. 3% °
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continuec ERRE @
A. Directors’ and chief executive’s interests A. EERTHRARZNELQXTARG R

and/or short positions in shares and
underlying shares of the Company
(Continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company or any of its

associated corporations (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

2. Mr. Peter Chan, Mr. Kenneth Chan, Mr. Chan Chi Ming, and Mr.
Desmond Chan are persons acting in concert pursuant to the
Acting in Concert Confirmation and Undertaking and accordingly
each of them is deemed to be interested in the shares held by the
others. By the Acting In Concert Confirmation And Undertaking,
with respect to the businesses of each member of the Group,
(i) each of Mr. Peter Chan and Mr. Desmond Chan confirms
that since 31 December 1990; (i) each of Mr. Peter Chan, Mr.
Desmond Chan and Mr. Chan Chi Ming confirms that since 5
February 1991; and (i) each of Mr. Peter Chan, Mr. Desmond
Chan, Mr. Chan Chi Ming and Mr. Kenneth Chan confirms that
since 8 March 2010, (i) they have agreed to consult each other
and reach an unanimous consensus among themselves on such
matters being the subject matters of any shareholders’ resolution,
prior to putting forward such resolution to be passed at any
shareholders’ meeting of each member of the Group, and have
historically voted on each resolution in the same way; (i) they have
centralised the ultimate control and right to make final decisions
with respect to their interests in the businesses and projects of
members of the Group; and (iil) they have operated members of
the Group as a single business venture on a collective basis and
have made collective decisions in respect of the financial and
operating policies of the members of the Group, and will continue
to do so. As such, each of the controlling shareholders is deemed
to be interested in 75.0% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Short positions in shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations

Saved as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, none of the
Directors and/or chief executives of the Company nor their
associates had or was deemed to have any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which each of them has taken or deemed to have taken
under the SFO), or which would be required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register required to be kept
therein or which would be required, pursuant to the Model Code,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
B. Substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and/or short positions

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company

As at 30 June 2021, the following persons (other than the
directors or the chief executive of the Company) have interests of
5% or more in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the

= Em)
B. FERREREMATREQTREG
REBRDZEREZR KA

R=ZFE-_—FXA=+H UTALTCRE
BARREERTREAR)RARRARG &
RO FERRLARRBIREES K
EPIEI6IKATE 2 R EmMz5%

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO: A ERERS
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company REQABEBERZER
Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
Number of total issued
Name of shareholder Capacity/nature of interest shares share capital
L N e i
2RTRE
BRE®E LB H1p, REmME RGHEE BHBED
Goody Luck Beneficial interest (Notes 1, 2) 360,000,000 75%
BamEn (Mt 2)
Goody Capital Beneficial interest (Notes 1, 2) 360,000,000 75%
BEmiEm (Mt - 2)
Mr. Peter Chan Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 360,000,000 75%
PR A S A B (I it2)
Mr. Kenneth Chan Interest in controlled corporations (Note 2) 360,000,000 75%
PREERSEAE R AE g (A it2)
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 360,000,000 75%
PRAARSE A& R LE k(A iE2)
Mr. Desmond Chan Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 360,000,000 75%
PREESLAE B (I it2)
Ms. Chan Lai Lin Diana Interest of spouse (Note 3) 360,000,000 75%
PREEL L I B (H7E3)
Ms. Wong Orangeo Wendy Interest of spouse (Note 4) 360,000,000 75%
FEELL B (St (ft4)
Ms. Lee Shuk Fong Interest of spouse (Note 5) 360,000,000 75%
£ fl Bt (A/7E5)
Ms. Tso Yin Wah Interest of spouse (Note 6) 360,000,000 75%
EERELL I B (Hte)
Deputada Leong On Kei, Angela  Beneficial interest 24,000,000 5%
RLHZES oy
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EEERE

B. Substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and/or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company (Continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

(Continued)
Notes:

1. The Company is owned as to 54.8% by Goody Luck and 20.2%
by Goody Capital after the completion of the capitalisation issue
and the share offer. Goody Luck is owned as to 98.6% by Mr.
Peter Chan and 1.4% by Mr. Kenneth Chan, and Goody Capital is
owned as to 33.3% by Mr. Desmond Chan, 33.3% by Mr. Chan
Chi Ming and 33.3% by Mr. Kenneth Chan.

2. Mr. Peter Chan, Mr. Kenneth Chan, Mr. Chan Chi Ming and Mr.
Desmond Chan are persons acting in concert pursuant to the
Acting in Concert Confirmation and Undertaking and accordingly
each of them is deemed to be interested in the shares held by the
others. By the Acting In Concert Confirmation And Undertaking,
with respect to the businesses of each member of the Group,
(i) each of Mr. Peter Chan and Mr. Desmond Chan confirms
that since 31 December 1990; (i) each of Mr. Peter Chan, Mr.
Desmond Chan and Mr. Chan Chi Ming confirms that since 5
February 1991; and (i) each of Mr. Peter Chan, Mr. Desmond
Chan, Mr, Chan Chi Ming and Mr. Kenneth Chan confirms that
since 8 March 2010, (i) they have agreed to consult each other
and reach an unanimous consensus among themselves on such
matters being the subject matters of any shareholders’ resolution,
prior to putting forward such resolution to be passed at any
shareholders’ meeting of each member of the Group, and have
historically voted on each resolution in the same way; (i) they have
centralised the ultimate control and right to make final decisions
with respect to their interests in the businesses and projects of
members of the Group; and (i) they have operated members
of the Group as a single business venture on a collective basis
and have made collective decisions in respect of the financial
and operating policies of the members of the Group, and wil
continue to do so. As such, each of the controlling shareholders is
deemed to be interested in 75% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

3. Ms. Chan Lai Lin Diana is the spouse of Mr. Peter Chan. Under the
SFO, Ms. Chan is deemed to be interested in the same number of
shares in which Mr. Peter Chan is interested.

4. Ms. Wong Orangeo Wendy is the spouse of Mr. Kenneth Chan.
Under the SFO, Ms. Wong is deemed to be interested in the same
number of shares in which Mr. Kenneth Chan is interested.

(o} Ms. Lee Shuk Fong is the spouse of Mr. Chan Chi Ming. Under the
SFO, Ms. Lee is deemed to be interested in the same number of
shares in which Mr. Chan Chi Ming is interested.

6. Ms. Tso Yin Wah is the spouse of Mr. Desmond Chan. Under the

SFO, Ms. Tso is deemed to be interested in the same number of
shares in which Mr. Desmond Chan is interested.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)

B. Substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and/or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company (Continued)

Short positions in shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations

As at 30 June 2021, no person, other than the directors and chief
executive of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
section headed “Directors’ and chief executive's interests and/or
short positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company”
above, had registered an interest or a short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
of interests required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company's
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the signification event of the Group after the reporting period
are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board
Chan Peter Tit Sang
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 September 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M A2 BLAM R

P>
EY:

To the shareholders of Sun Hing Printing Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sun
Hing Printing Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 168, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30
June 2021,
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

and of its consolidated financial performance and its

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

FRETER

18 3 % B AN R

FRESER
MRBAFTEATREESSNERALE - RREAN
PRV BBRERNEARREZNSEA - ZFS
HRREBESBTERGRAM BRI ABRE
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R BEH TS - RENETPRMOMEEDN
WAL BE R
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BEMBENET - e - TENEFF TEBRER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENENMEERRENSE

Provision for inventories

FERE

As at 30 June 2021, the Group recorded gross inventories
of approximately HK$68,354,000 and a provision for

Our audit procedures included:

BPIESIZF B

impairment of approximately HK$1,275,000. The write-
down of inventories to net realisable value was estimated by
management through the application of judgement and the
use of highly subjective assumptions.
RZEZ—FXA=Z+H FXEBEHEBFFEL
68,364,000 7T » RRER#EAI1,275,0008 7T - EEE/E
FRERABNSEETBBRRREFHAFTEZAIZRF
e

The accounting policies and disclosures for the impairment
provision for inventories are included in notes 3, 4, 7 and 18
to the consolidated financial statements.
BETERBERBOETECR RIFBEEMEN GRS MR
KMIFES 4 7RI8 -

obtaining an understanding of management's controls over
identifying and valuing obsolete, damaged, slow-moving,
excess and other inventory items whose costs may not be
fully recoverable;

BRERBHNBRMGERSE - 82 - FiH - BRI
RE AR 2 W BIKA 2 FFE IS

evaluating the methodologies, inputs and assumptions
used by the Group in calculating the impairment;

Al BEREFERERPANIDE - BAEMKRE

assessing the adequacy of impairment provision by
reviewing subsequent sales after the year end and a
comparison with historical sales records; and
FREHFEIRARHEENEFELHELHELL
B ORFHERERBELSRE + &

observing physical condition of inventories by performing
physical inventory inspection.

FRETFERYRE  REEFENERR -
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BY %A R E

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic altemative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit,
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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B ZBE RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Ip Hing Lam.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

29 September 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

LERER

For the year ended 30 June
BEANA=THLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HeE FHET FET
REVENUE W 6 380,090 311,835
Cost of sales SHER A (228,577) (197,148)
Gross profit S 151,513 114,687
Other income EMUA 6 2,829 4,260
Government grants IEEREH:Y 6 2,753 823
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEFAZ (5,307) (5,074)
Administrative expenses THRAX (61,291) (60,018)
Other operating income, net H b gL U A SHEE 4,192 565
Finance costs A& A 8 (907) (1,493)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B A0 F 7 93,782 53,750
Income tax expense s i 11 (15,950) (8,897)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KATEE AEML
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF FERF
THE COMPANY 77,832 44,853
EARNINGS PER SHARE AATRERFE AEL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY BREF
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13 HK centsi&fll  HK centsi#E 1l
Basic and diluted BEARRE#E 16.22 9.34
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mETHWZER

For the year ended 30 June
BEANA=THLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 77,832 44,853
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hi 2wz (&8
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that  ~ RT A HIR A e EH D EE BN
may be reclassified to profit or loss in Hipzmkas(E8)
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of BREFINETSHE K Z58
foreign operations 8,329 (4,180)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FREM2EkzE (&iE)
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX I $i1E 8,329 (4,150)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #HATR#EEAEBLFEE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE 2HWZEEE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 86,161 40,703
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R R

30 June 30 June
2021 2020
—B=-—F —E-TF
ANA=+H ~A=1+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BiaE FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 14 72,051 60,625
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 9,650 17,789
Intangible asset A E 16 2,700 2,700
Financial asset at fair value BATFEE ABZER
through profit or loss CRUEE 17 10,588 10,039
Prepayments and deposits TENRERIES 20 32,112 17,181
Deferred tax assets EIETRIBEE 24 4,687 3,773
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 131,788 112,107
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories TE 18 67,079 24,385
Trade receivables g 5 W IE 19 81,930 61,922
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  Fa T3R8 - $2& K i g 2k 08 20 4,982 8,293
Restricted cash ZRREIIR & 21 919 =
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRESEEY 21 203,510 204,120
Total current assets MENEERE 358,420 298,720
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade payables B SR HE 22 28,924 15,950
Other payables and accruals HEibfEM B R ERTE R 23 36,842 31,024
Lease liabilities HEEE 15 10,087 11,422
Tax payable FERTREIE 28,989 21,393
Total current liabilities mE B ERE 104,842 79,789
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 253,578 218,931
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAERARBARE
LIABILITIES 385,366 331,038
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBESF
Lease liabilities HE&EE 15 83 7,853
Deferred tax liability ELERHEAE 24 5 68
Total non-current liabilities BB ERE 88 7,921
Net assets BEZEE 385,278 323,117
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners RATEE AELER
of the Company
Share capital % 25 4,800 4,800
Reserves e 26 380,478 318,317
Total equity RS 4EER 385,278 323,117
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQ%I}JT%

B RS

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE-Z- S A=1THILFE
Exchange
Share Share Other  Retained fluctuation Total
capital  premium reserve profits reserve equity
RAx  RGEE  HtRE  REEN EXRBRE  EREE
HK8000 HK$000 HK$:000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FAL FAL FET FET FAL
(note 26(a))  (note 26(b)) (note 26(c))
(Histose)  (Wiitoe) (Hi#t26(0)
AT July 2019 R-B-NE+A-B 4800 479712 (38049) 138759 3992 299214
Profit for the year FERR - - = 44,853 = 44,853
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FREBZAEE
Exchange differences on translation of BEBNEBMERZH
foreign operations - - - - (4,150) (4,150)
Total comprehensive income forthe year  ERZEMELE - - - 44,853 (4,150) 40,703
Final dividend for 2019 = :—hﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ - - - (12,000) = (12,000)
Interim dividend for 2020 (note 12) ZECEERBRE (HiE12) - - - (4,800) - (4,800)
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 EC 3_15/\)5] +AR
ZZTFLA-A 4,800 479,712 (328,049 166,812* (158 323,117
Profit for the year FERF - - - 71,832 - 77,832
Other comprehensive income for the year:  FRE M2 U -
Exchange differences on translation of REPIEBNELES
foreign operations - - - - 8,329 8,329
Total comprehensive income forthe year ~ FRZENELEE - - - 77,832 8,329 86,161
Final dhvidend for 2020 fnote 12) ZSTERBRE(HH12) - - - (16,800) - (16,800)
Interim dividend for 2021 (note 12) T -ERERE(HE12) - - - (7,200) - (7,200
A 30 June 2021 R-B-—%xA=1A 4,800  479,7112*  (328,049)  220,644* 8171* 385,278

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

HK$380,478,000 (2020: HK$318,317,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

ZEREBRPIERE P BN K RG80,478,00074

JTL(ZZE T4 : 318,317,000/ 7T ) 4R

BB
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEREMNER

Year ended 30 June 2021

T —FRA=THLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KETBHMERERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 75 B s A 93,782 53,750
Adjustments for: FRAT ZIEATEFE :
Interest income FBWA 6 (2,515) (3,563)
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID- 19t & B 6 - (485)
Depreciation of property, plant ME  BERBREZITE
and equipment 7 9,048 8,016
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRBREEZITE 7 11,570 12,635
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYE  BEEREEERN
plant and equipment &518 7 462 3B
Write-down of inventories WRFE 7 440 87
Fair value gain on a financial asset RATEERAERARNSRE
at fair value through profit or loss BEZNFERS 7 (549) (39)
Write-off of trade receivables R e U E B AR R 7 98 -
Finance costs A& B AN 8 907 1,493
113,243 71,927
Increase in inventories FEEM (41,704) (5630)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e A IEE N (19,685) (7,568)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and JERFRIE -~ B R HAEIRGRIE
other receivables 10 (10,046) (7,481)
Increase in trade payables B 5 FE FoEE mn 12,387 419
Increase in other payables HEMENRIERERER
and accruals N 3,751 14,623
Cash generated from operations BARIEHEE 57,946 71,290
Interest paid ERFE (907) (1,493)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) BB (BR)EBFISGH (8,508) 1,427
Overseas taxes paid EEINRIE (1,612) (1,872)
Net cash flows from operating activities RTINS R e RE 5 46,919 69,352
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BRETHMBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BF B 6 2,515 3,563
Purchases of items of property, plantand BB - BERREIEE
equipment 14 (13,501) (17,047)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - BEAREER
property, plant and equipment FTiS 508 106 =
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash 2B fﬁff/ﬁ% >/ (3 0) (919) 11,402
Purchase of a financial asset at fair value ~ BEEIZ A FEETA
through profit or loss BaremEE - (10,000)
Net cash flows used in investing activities  RE/EBIFTAR &R E 5 (11,799) (12,082)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METEHERSRE
ACTIVITIES
Principal portion of lease payments HEBERZAEIHMHD 27(a) (12,536) (10,634)
Dividend paid 2RI E (24,000) (16,800)
Net cash flows used in financing activiies Bt & EEFT AR &R E/F 58 (36,536) (27,434)

94 SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED 37 %2 EJ Jall 22 i% /5 PR A 7]




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AEETRER

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE-ZT - —FA=1THILFE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) ReRRSE/YWEMOBD)
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R (1,416) 29,836
Cash and cash equivalents FUINRES KRS FEY
at beginning of year 204,120 174,651
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SN [ R & Bl g2 28 % 58 806 (367)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FARNESRREEEY
AT END OF YEAR 203,510 204,120
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HREeRBEELZEYERDT
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances R RIRITH 32,710 16,671
Non-pledged time deposits and wealth BERRAIHELR=EAN
management products with original IR TERER IR EM
maturity of less than three months
when acquired 170,800 188,449
Cash and cash equivalents as stated HBERERERREATH
in the consolidated statement of MRRRFIRE S K
cash flows and the consolidated BEEEY
statement of financial position 203,510 204,120
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R B EE

30 June 2021
—E-—®F,XA=+H
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP

INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands. The registered address of the Company
is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 4/F., Sze Hing Industrial
Building, 35-37 Lee Chung Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) were
engaged in the manufacture and sale of printing products during
the year.

Goody Luck Limited ("Goody Luck”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BWI"), is the immediate holding
company of the Company and, in the opinion of the Directors,
also the ultimate holding company of the Company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

BA RS AR MR

30 June 2021
—E=—FXA=+H

PEIREBER @)

BB ARAKNEHR
ARREEMBARNFEEET

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
SRR % BRTEER/ AR
L REZHHY EfRA BRAEDN TEER
Direct Indirect
B Gk
China IOE Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Internet and technology
HEEYHEERAR & 28T business
BRERRRER
Mau Hing Intemational Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
BEEEER A BB 10,00047T printing products
REZRRIBENRIR
Strong Luck Limited BvI US$1 100 - Investment holding
EBRARES E REER
Sun Hing Printing Company Limited Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 = 100 Sale of printing products
SROFIERAT Bk 6,000,000%3% HELRIS
Tung Pak Printing (Shenzhen) People’s Republic of HK$67,000,000 = 100 Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited" China (the "PRC")/ 67,000,000 7T printing products
RAREORINBRAR Mainland China Bt R SHE RIS
i A RAFE
(TREln,/
HEl A

A

the laws of the PRC.

This entity is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

" ZEBRETRAZEMRIIEBE D

ES

FRITESERREEZEREELRFE
FKEKBUAREFEET ZAKE DA
ARABIMEAR - BEFRBRUERE B
RANFBERSEHRRERTE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IS SRR M AL

30 June 2021
T —FXA=+H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”") and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss which has been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong
Kong dollars (‘HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 30 June 2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(o)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
()  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the holding company of
the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilites of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to Definition of Material

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are described
below:

2.1

2.2

BA RS AR MR

30 June 2021

—E-—FXA=+H
RREXE m)
SERENEE®)

i = B R B R BN & XAt = TR I A =
Z—HERZAELREL  AEEEEHF
HERGEMNKREHR - R—BHERR
MG REREE ML MR EITHE
LA EZ H AR ©

HAEBAEWB AR NIEHE  Aler
IHERNZHBRARNEE(RERR)RE
& : (VM IEERE R A BREE ¢ K(i)FTA
R REHE N Z58 0 WHR()E WIRARE
BATE  (VEARBIRER A TFE - Kii)
FTEA W R IB R RO TR B AR EAL -
EREREMEERSERNANEBEMN
B E D TYEF DB EB R RAR B w A (fi
WA EEEAEEERHERBEES
BEFREANEERR -

B ERERKESRET

AEBERKN - F-NFHBEHREH2ME
X ERFEAERRERERATRE
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EEMGMELERNESR  EHEE
ZAEFT

BRP B MEERE5E -
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Z1EFT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IS SRR M AL

30 June 2021
T —FXA=+H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

(@  Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance
to all parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new
guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities, and
updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and
liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The
Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of
the concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard. The Conceptual Framework
did not have any significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.

wed)

(b)  Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets
to be considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to
assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to permit
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to transactions or
other events that occurred on or after 1 July 2020. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

©

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
address issues affecting financial reporting in the period
before the replacement of an existing interest rate
benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The
amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable
hedge accounting to continue during the period of
uncertainty before the introduction of the alternative
RFR. In addition, the amendments require companies
to provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties. The amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group
as the Group does not have any interest rate hedging
relationships.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on
the nature or magnitude of information, or both. The
amendments did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

BA RS AR MR

30 June 2021
—ET—FXA=1+H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R B EE

30 June 2021
T —FXA=+H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

2ICHEMEEFARERNEBYH

o= g

A=A

AEBY RN AFBREFEABATCHE
MEREROHET REETBRERBIRS

financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendment to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2!

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 20212

Insurance Contracts*

Insurance Contracts* ”

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current® ©

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies*

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabiltties arising from a
Single Transaction*

Property, Flant and Equipment:

Proceeds before Intended
Use?®

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract®

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 419
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available
for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in
QOctober 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no
change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17
issued in October 2020, the effective date of HKFRS 17
was deferred to 1 July 2023, and HKFRS 4 was amended
to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers
to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods
beginning before 1 July 2023

BA RS AR MR

30 June 2021
—ET—FXA=1+H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IS SRR M AL

30 June 2021
T —FXA=+H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative RFR. The
Phase 2 amendments provide a practical expedient to allow
the effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting the
carrying amount when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest
rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the interest rate
benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations and
hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition
are dealt with through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as
a risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of
the hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement
is met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable within the next
24 months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity
to disclose additional information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark
reform on an entity’s financial instruments and risk management
strategy. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied
retrospectively, but entities are not required to restate the
comparative information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”)
issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an
exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to
the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an
asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS 37
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather than
assumed in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3
should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(FRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead
of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the
acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 July 2022. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the date of first application, the Group will not
be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Conti
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

d)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availabllity of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
by 12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to
rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022,
provided the other conditions for applying the practical expedient
are met. The amendment is effective retrospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendment recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits at the
beginning of the current accounting period. Earlier application is
permitted. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendment to determine the impact it will have on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an
entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if it
complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require companies to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide guidance
on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early
application permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates
clarify how companies should distinguish changes in accounting
policies from changes in accounting estimates. The amendments
define accounting estimates as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify that an accounting policy may require
such items to be measured at monetary amounts that cannot
be observed directly and must instead be estimated. In such
cases, an entity develops an accounting estimate to achieve the
objective set out by the accounting policy. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023, with early application permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items,
and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfiling that contract (e.g.,
direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfiling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they
are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts
for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on

the Group’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group

are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other's behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies
the amendment. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected
to have a significant impact on the Group'’s financial

statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
llustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment
of lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its unlisted fund investment at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person's
family and that person

M

(i
(i)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(o)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

M

(i)

(i)

)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity): and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3% 1o 5%
Leasehold improvements 20% or over the lease terms
Plant and machinery 5% to 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 20% 1o 33.3%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 16% to 25%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life
of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

@@  Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
pbasis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:
Buildings Over the lease terms
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful lives of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(©)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of buildings (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption
for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment
that is considered to be of low value. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R B EE

30 June 2021
—E-—®F,XA=+H
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group's business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

BA RS AR MR

30 June 2021
—ET—FXA=1+H

FESHBERE @)
RENREMERMEE &)

ASwARE(E)

B ReMEEETOINRZ B (AIRE
BEEREEZEENAH)ER - —REER
ER—RM SR EXEP EEHRARZN
BEMNSREERS -

A
CRMAEZREHEVRFEEZTIH
-

BB AT B 2B EE (K TA)
BREBFERAGENSREERRERAER
FEXAE - WATHE - BEER LR
R BRERER - AR NERK
wmRER -

B FEEBREARZMEE
BATEEAERARZERMEERAT
ERFBEMRRARIIE - MAFEZEFRE
REFRIERRTHER

117



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 June 2021
—E-—®F,XA=+H
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs’") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

— Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the

reporting date (but that are not purchased or

originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 1

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coni
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or payables, as appropriate.

nued)

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group'’s financial liabilities include trade payables, certain
other payables and accruals and lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included
in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R B EE

30 June 2021
—E-—®F,XA=+H
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilites are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilites and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group
will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services
to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

BA RS AR MR

30 June 2021
—E=—FXA=+H

FTESHHERBE @)

IEERNE D)
EEAEBMA A ETRNTEF A BENEFH
TEEEENBHIEE EIKY 0 BRERE
BERELEREaEEA—REKEERE
—ERERINEARPEEREAEE
EREAEREETERAEREHEE - B
RN SAEREERA
BERAERGAEEBE TAKRKBERL
Wz FRSRIARRE - REIERIE S A RIET
BIEE EA T o

BT 5 BY

WA ARRERSEWRMEARTERE
MR R AR B IRE A FERR -
i Bh EEFA X THE MR - RIR X EHAR
MEMNRTHRIREGEEERREA

Wy R

REEFENHKE
KEEPAANBERE MR
REZRTEFPRERBRASEEREHHRS
ZEERIRFERESHRESEER

i3

BHTHRERETZLSBE @ AT A
SEABERIRBBREEETP, A ERN
MRESE - AIEREEAOHRBEMA
W BIRG - BEEEAERENTHEEE
HEBARRE - FIERNRFTREEE
FIRATEE NS IR EAWGEED o

125



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R B EE

30 June 2021
—E-—®F,XA=+H
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale of products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the products.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e. transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal governments, the
assets of which are held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions are made by the Group based on a percentage of
the participating employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes. The Group’'s employer contributions
vest fully once made.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the memorandum and bye-laws of the relevant
companies grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R B EE

30 June 2021
—E-—®F,XA=+H
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain
or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currency of certain overseas subsidiaries is a
currency other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rate for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of an overseas subsidiary
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rate for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes worldwide. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R B EE

30 June 2021
—E-—®F,XA=+H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below.

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its items of property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of items of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and its competitor
actions. Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are shorter than those previously estimated, or
it will write off or write down technically obsolete assets that have
been abandoned.

The carrying value of an item of property, plant and equipment
is reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable in accordance with the accounting policy as
disclosed in the relevant part of this section. The recoverable
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is calculated
as the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use, the calculations of which involve the use of estimates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(‘ ontint A(\/\\

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Write-down of inventories

Management reviews the condition of inventories of the Group
and makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items which are identified as no longer suitable for
sale or use. Management estimates the net realisable value for
such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. The Group carries out an
inventory review at the end of each reporting period and makes
provision against obsolete and slow-moving items. Management
reassesses the estimation at the end of each reporting period.

The identification of obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items requires the use of judgements and estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact on the carrying values of inventories and
the write-down of inventories recognised in the periods in which
such estimates have been changed. The carrying amount of
inventories as at 30 June 2021 was HK$67,079,000 (2020:
HK$24,385,000).

Current tax and deferred tax

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions in accordance with the prevailing tax regulations and
makes tax provision accordingly. However, judgement is required
in determining the Group’s provision for income taxes as there
are many transactions and calculations of which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact on the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period
in which such determination is made. The carrying amount of
income tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2021 was HK$28,989,000 (2020: tax
payable of HK$21,393,000).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Con
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Withholding taxes

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 5%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

tinued)

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had unremitted earnings
amounting to approximately HK$65,347,000 (2020:
HK$63,108,000) that are subject to withholding taxes. In the
opinion of the directors, the Company is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is not probable
that the subsidiaries established in Mainland China will distribute
such eamnings in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, no deferred
tax has been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on distribution of unremitted earnings by the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of eamings
generated.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. They are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value-
in-use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION

30 June 2021

——FRA=1H

For management purposes, the Group has only one reportable MEEMS  AEBRE—E]2F{HEL
operating segment, which is the manufacture and sale of printing 5 8B - BN&dsE & SHE BVl an o
products.
Geographical information ih & & R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) XREMBEEHKE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Hong Kong BA 157,429 160,784
Europe BM 148,384 68,337
United States of America EE 24,363 39,690
The People's Republic of China FEAREMBE(HRA])
(the "PRC") 18,580 20,867
Others Hit 31,334 20157
380,090 311,835

The revenue information above is based on the locations of

B RSEER DREEFAELE

the customers. 5l o
(b) Non-current assets (b) FRBEE
2021 2020
Hksoop HRBOOD
FET FET
The PRC ==] 5 106,915 88,686
Hong Kong 5 3,494 4,174
110,409 92,860
The non-current asset information above is based on the FHIERBAREEM DIREE 2 FTIE
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments HEl 7y o WA BRI EE KRR
and deferred tax assets. HEE °
Information about major customers TREFHNER ‘
Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted to REZFBEF (BARKER10%A £) K
10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: W5 E T -
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ ‘000
FET FAET
Customer A ZHEA 52,227 57,778
Customer B ZFEB 188,915 87,252
Customer C BFEC 50,634 36,239
291,776 181,269
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SOJun62021
—E-—%XA=+H

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GOVERNMENT GRANTS

An analysis of the Group'’s revenue, other income and
government grants is as follows:

Wz - HABW A K BT /8 BY

Wt - HWARBFMBNOMIT

2021 2020
—E=-F —TCTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Revenue Wz
Revenue from contracts with customers EE&HMas 380,090 311,835
Revenue from contracts with customers ZEASHKE
Disaggregated revenue information SIFWAER
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sale of products transferred at a point in time  $HE&E R ER B ZHEENE R 380,090 311,835
Geographical markets WETHH 2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong B 157,429 160,784
Europe B 148,384 68,337
United States of America ESE 24,363 39,690
The PRC &2 18,580 20,867
Others Hitb 31,334 22,157
380,090 311,835
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND

GOVERNMENT GRANTS (Continued)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that was included in contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from
performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

BA RS AR MR

30 June 2021

—E-—FXxA=1+H
Wz HaU AR BB @)

TREINNAFEREFAREHRNE LD
BEKEBEHREXENEEMEZRN
ERRRETHE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue recognised that was included in REHTFAEHEENEER
contract liabilities at the beginning of the WS -
reporting period:
Sales of products HEEm 3,503 1,442

Performance obligations
Information about the Group'’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of products
and payment is generally due within one month, extending up to
three months for major customers, from delivery.

All the amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations are expected to be recognised as
revenue within one year.

BREE
ARARERNEEQERMNT :

HEEm
BHASEEERNERRKENX - MBS
R—EARARZH TEEPERERS
=EA(BRNEmEFH) -

PTEENGBNENEEFZXZBLREY
R —FREER SR -
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SO Jume 2021
—E-—%XA=+H
6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 6. Wz HMWARBKFEE @)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS (Continued)
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and W EMWMARBN#EERNS AT -
government grants is as follows: (Continued) (%)
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other income and government grants & 4 A & B % BY
Interest income R EUA 2,515 3,563
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID-19t8 & TRk - 485
Others Hith 314 212
2,829 4,260
Government grants (note) BB (Htat) 2,753 823
5,682 5,083
Note: During the year, the government grants have been received from Het - R BSHEBREEBBERFENLE

the Employee Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund of
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
and for innovative and technology enhancement in the PRC. In the
prior year, the government grants were received for upgrade of
machinery in the PRC and support for research activities in Hong
Kong. There are no unfulfiled conditions or contingencies relating

to these grants.

EH2 T [RFEZE 5T &I A K B A e 8% &
B SOERT 8 - R EFE - BRI
8 TEERHERBEAKS 2 FAREE
BRNRES - BT 2B IS
REKIGHFEE M RAEIE -

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BREANER
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBERNRBAEME MR (GTA)
(crediting):
2021 2020
—E-—F BT F
HK$’000 /-/K$ ‘000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold* DEFERAN 228,577 197,148
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BEMNREZNE 9,048 8,016
Depreciation of right-of-Use assets FRBEEZIE 11,570 12,635
Lease payments not included in the Rt EREaERTESAZ
measurement of lease liabilities (note 15(c)) HERMRK 3,216 3,108
Auditor's remuneration A G 1,314 1,309
Employee benefit expense (excluding directors’  EERAEX(TBEEER
and chief executive's remuneration): THRBENETE)
Wages and salaries™* TENFE 73,226 66,559
Pension scheme contributions” BARSF BT 2,652 2,693
75,878 69,252
Foreign exchange differences, net* N =R S (4,203) (559)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HENE  BEMKREBERER
plant and equipment” 462 33
Write-down of inventories*™ W& 440 87
Fair value gain on a financial asset at fair value LA EFBER )\EEE’J
through profit or loss* CREEZ AT ERE (549) (39)
Write-off of trade recelvables* MR P E 5 B8R 5 98 -
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continue 7.
Cost of inventories sold includes HK$75 651 000 (2020:
HK$69,505,000) of employee benefit expense, depreciation,
lease payments and write-down of inventories, the respective
amounts of which are also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed above for each of these types of expenses.

These items are included in “Other operating income, net” on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

= This item is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

o This item includes provision for redundancy cost of HK$3,495,000
(2020: HK$10,304,000), which is included in “Cost of sales” on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, there were no forfeited
contributions (by employers on behalf of employees who left the
scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) may be used
by the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions (2020:
Nil). As at 30 June 2021, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in
future years (2020: Nil).

BA RS AR MR

30 June 2021
—ET—FXA=1+H

[@ﬁau/mﬂ(ﬁ;)
BEFEERABIET5651,0008T(=F
Z T 1 69,505,0007 7T ) My & B 1& K|
e HEMRERMBEFE(HES
HEAA LRSS BRI EENER
HREE) o

* ZEHEAFAGABERKREN [HBE
BUNFER] -

o ZRABFHAGABEEREEN [HEK
A

= ZIBHEBIES,495 0008 (T T F
10,304,000/ 7T ) ) JTUBRRK AR 48 - W E
FTARAERRREA [#HEMA] -

" BE-_ZT-—FA=+tHLFE  EE
/xﬁa?ﬁxxllﬁlﬁi\?ﬁ((ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ:ﬁﬁa HRE
HETARTR H %A - EEEIFKE,JE@
IR - BURERENEFKE(ZE
TFE:E\) c RZT=— EF/\ﬁ_+E|
7R &R B AR AT A A HURCR SR 2 R AR 2 4%
BRBER(ZT_TF : &) -

FINANCE COSTS 8. FEMNA
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT F&T
Interest on lease liabilities HEEBZFEB 907 1,498
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 9. EERITHAREMN

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (0), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

RIE ETARR - B Tﬂﬂﬁu%SBS( )@)
o) ) RMERAR(HBEEEFNZER)
RO IEBE M FNE B 1T E B
R

2021 2020

HK$’000 /—/K$ ‘000

FHET FET

Fees e 844 816
Other emoluments: HiENe -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e SRR EWER 22,525 21,202

Pension scheme contributions RINEETEIER 35 36

22,560 21,058

23,404 22,074
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30 June 2021
T —FXA=+H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

9. EERITHARTMN =)

(Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BULFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FRINTEIERTESHEESN
during the year were as follows: N
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry REiE 112 112
Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis RELiEEs 112 112
Mr. Ho Yuk Chi (k=i
(Resigned on 30 September 2020) (RZZT=ZTFNA=1+HEIT) 56 112
Mr. Wong Kam Fai ) ke
(Appointed on 1 October 2020) (RZZE=ZEFTA—BEEE) 84 =
364 336
There were no other emoluments payable to the FAMEAMBYIFNTEETIHH
independent non-executive directors during the year e (ZE_ZTF : &) -
(2020: Ni).
(b) Executive directors (b) BITES
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
2= 174 B
e BNER TR Eak ]
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FAT FET FABT FET
2021 —BC--F
Executive directors: BTESE:
Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang BRE LA 120 11,351 - 11,471
Mr. Chan Chun Sang Desmond &L At 120 2,125 - 2,245
Mr. Chan Chi Ming BERELE 120 2,138 14 2,272
Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin* BB 120 6,911 21 7,052
480 22,525 35 23,040
2020 ZBIBF
Executive directors: HOTES
Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang BRI KA 120 10,571 = 10,691
Mr. Chan Chun Sang Desmond REERE 120 2,060 = 2,180
Mr. Chan Chi Ming RERELE 120 2,069 18 2,207
Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin* BREER LA 120 6,522 18 6,660
480 21,222 36 21,738

*

Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin, who acts as an executive

director of the Company, is also the chief executive officer

of the Company.
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30 June 2021
—ET—FXA=1+H

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 9. EERTHBAIRTM @)
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

(Continued)

(b) Executive directors (Continued) (b) BITES@W)
There was no arrangement under which a director waived FA - EEYUEITILHEREXRE
or agreed to walve any remuneration during the year. EETEEN -

FA - AKERERAEENHH
TERINAZER B I0ABy 70 22 B SR

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group or as compensation for loss of office. B o
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. BB EHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included four FRN - IEEaHEEEFENA(ZEE
(2020: four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out F:UE)ES - HEMNFBERN L
in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the Qo FAMBT —R(ZZE_ZTF : —R)IF
remaining one (2020: one) non-director, highest paid employee EERAHEENFIFBEIEHNT

are as follows:

2021 2020

—E-—F T CTE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYWEF 746 736

Performance related bonuses FIRMABEEA 76 75

Pension scheme contributions RIS B 18 18

840 829

The number of non-director, highest paid employee whose BERUTHMAERNIEEEZSHEE A

remuneration fell within the following band is as follows: 2T

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the FR - AEEHERMIEERSHFEESX

non-director highest paid employee as an inducement to join or EB - fEAINAZKSE B 5000 A B & 826
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. Sy EERRAE(E o
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SOJUHGZOQW
—E-—%XA=+H

11. INCOME TAX

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the BV, the Group is not subject to any income tax in such
jurisdictions. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of
the Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2020: HK$2,000,000)
of assessable profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2020:
8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%
(2020: 16.5%). The PRC tax has been provided at the rate of
25% (2020: 25%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
the PRC.

11. FIBH

BERASHESRABHER TSR RE
%ﬁ C AEBEBERZE AR R AR EM

B -FRN - BENSHERRBEBE
Eﬁ'ﬂﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁmﬂ?ﬁﬂﬁf)% —_F-F
F165%) 2 HEGTIREE  HAKHE
MEFB KB AR RAE FEH MR
MEFEHEERLA - ZMBAFINE
2,000,000 L (ZZ ZZ 4 : 2,000, ooo,%
TO)RIEBEAFANGEIERETS. 5% (=T =
T : 8.26%)FTE - MHE#E2,000,0007 T
RIEBR BIIZ16.6%(ZZE=FF : 16.5%) %
oo REBIBTY B R B E £/ H A ER
s FIR26% (Z B ZFF : 26%) 2 B
R -

2021 2020
—EB-—F ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current — Hong Kong KE— BB
Charge for the year FARX 13,139 9,456
Overprovision in prior years BAFEBREEE (14) 68)
Current — PRC ARER— R
Charge for the year FRAX 3,418 3,278
Deferred (note 24) IRIE (7t 24) (593) (8,769)
Total tax charge for the year FRHIBRZ BT 15,950 8,897

140 SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED 37 %2 EJ Jall 22 i% /5 PR A 7]




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R R Y o

11. INCOME TAX (Continued)

12

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rate for the tax expense at the effective tax rate is

11. FTI88 @)
AR 5% T % 3R 3 PR R B B T 0 R O T T B
TEREEEHRNBSETHENT

30 June 2021

—E-—FA=+H

as follows:
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Profit before tax MR 55 B A 93,782 53,750
Tax at the statutory tax rate of BTREAERAAERRTED
different jurisdictions FIE 16,284 8,559
Lower tax rate enacted by local authority AR = Ll 0N e (165) (169)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BAFEMAHARIERAR
previous years (14) (68)
Income not subject to tax BARBIUA (1,125) (608)
Expenses not deductible for tax EEEH R 972 1,168
Others Hh (2) 11
Tax charge at the Group’s effective tax rate BRAEEERTE17.0%
of 17.0% (2020: 16.6%) (ZZ=FF : 16.6%)7THK
Bl A =2 15,950 8,897
DIVIDENDS 12. R B2
2021 2020
—B--fF —ERTEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interim — HK1.5 cent (2020: HK1.0 cent) FE— TR AR 1 578 (L
per ordinary share ZEZFTF - 1.08) 7,200 4,800
Proposed final — HK4.0 cents EE AR - SREBERL. 0B
(2020: HK3.5 cents) per ordinary share (ZZ=ZTF : 3.581L) 19,200 16,800
26,400 21,600

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

REFZFRABE AN EREBRBF KR
T LEARRBRROER T AEE -
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30 June 2021
ZEZ-FXA=1+H
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. AR R ERFREAELERE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY A
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based EREARZFNSEIIREAR R RER
on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the EABGEFEFENERFAEETEBRY
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares HNHE F 15 8480,000,0000% (ZE =T 4 -
of 480,000,000 (2020: 480,000,000) in issue during the year. 480,000,000/% )51 &
No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share HRAEEHEZE T - —FR_ZT-FF
amounts presented for the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020 NAZTRALEFEABREBITEBEEE S Y
in respect of dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive AR AR EREESEEHHE-T
ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 30 June 2021 T FR-E-ZEFXNAZTHLEFER
and 2020. 2INEREXRBFELFAE -
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are FRERREERF TRE TS EE
based on:
2021 2020
—B--fF —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Earnings B
Profit attributable to equity holders NN 8 SE SN by
of the Company 77,832 44,853
2021 2020
—E-—F T CTE
Shares B 12
Weighted average number of ordinary FARADEITEBRINEFHE
shares in issue during the years 480,000,000 480,000,000
HK cents HK cents
Al JENL
Earnings per share BREF
Basic and diuted HAR K #5E 16.22 9.34
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30 June 2021
—E=—FXA=+H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
improve- Plant and and office Motor
Buildings ments machinery equipment vehicles Total
Bl £ER
BT HELE  BEREE  BOZRE RE @it

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
T Tz T T T T

30 June 2021 —B--£XA=tH

At 30 June 2020 and R-E-FERA=THR
at 1 July 2020; ZRITELA-A:
Cost R 412 398 167,732 14,195 9,512 192,249
Accumulated depreciation ZHiE (352) (398) (112,448) (10,105) (8,321) (131,624)
Net camying amount FEFE 60 - 55,284 4,090 1,191 60,625

A1 July 2020, net of acoumulated  R-E-FELF-H

depreciation bl 60 - 55,284 4,090 1,191 60,625
Additions NE - - 12,116 968 a7 13,501
Disposals e - - (568) - - (568)
Depreciation provided during ERFERE

the year 5) - (6,944) (1,657) (442) (9,048)
Exchange realignment EH A% 7 - 1,026 410 98 1,541
At 30 June 2021, net of i Stz oy = I

acoumulated depreciation Nk 2iting 62 - 66,914 3,811 1,264 72,051
At 30 June 2021 WZE-_—5~A=1H:

Cost A 462 394 195,826 16,474 9,542 222,698

Accumulated depreciation ZithE (400) (394) (128,912) (12,663) (8,278) (150,647)

Net carmying amount REFE 62 - 66,014 3,811 1,264 72,051
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30 June 2021
T —FXA=+H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - BERZHE @

(Continued)
Fumiture,
Leasenold fixiures
improve- Plant and and office Motor
Builoings ments machinery equipment vehicles Total
B RBR
B HERE  BEREE  BOERE a2 st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK8000
T T T T T T
30 June 2020 —E-EEXAZ1A
A1 July 2019: RZE-n&EtA-R:
Cost KA 431 398 159,685 13,797 9481 183,692
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (360) (398) (112,119 (8719) (7,905) (129,49)
Net camying amount BEFE 1 = 47,466 5,084 1,576 54,197

At1 July 2019, net of acoumulated  R=E-AELF-H

depreciation Nk ZHNE 7 = 47,466 5,084 1576 54,197
Addiions e = = 15,980 903 164 17,047
Disposals HE - - 33 - - (33)
Depreciation provided during FRTERE

the year 9 = (5,771) (1729) (519) (8016)
Bxchange realignment ERAE ) - (2.358) (174) (36) (2.570)
At 30 June 2020, net of R-Z-ZTERA=1R"

acoumulated depreciation Nk 2iting 60 - 56,284 4,090 1191 60,625
At30 June 2020: RZE-ZE~A=1H:

Cost A 412 398 167,732 14,195 9,512 102,249

Accumulated depreciation 2ihE (362) 398 (112,448) 10,108) 8,321) (131,624)

Net canying amount FHaFE 60 - 56,284 4,090 1,191 60,625

444 SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED FEENRIZR AR DR / Annual R FREHHRE 202



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R R Y o

30 June 2021

—EZ—FRA=TtH
15. LEASES 15. HE
The Group as a lessee EEBERABEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings used AEEGRAREEREELZHETFEL
in its operations. Leases of buildings generally have lease terms HEEY - BF2HEBBENT1EIF
between 1 and 3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from —MRmE  AEBEITNEMASEENAINZ A
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. THEELRHDHBEEEE -
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets FRN - AEEFERAEEEZRABER
and the movements during the year are as follows: SEFEIIWT
Buildings
gF
HK$'000
FET
As at 1 July 2019 R-ZZE—-NFtHA—H 31,008
Additions NE 487
Depreciation charge e (12,639)
Exchange realignment bE AR (1,066)
As at 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 N-E-_FEEXNA=1tHK
R=-B-Z2£+tH—H 17,789
Additions NE 1,747
Depreciation charge e (11,570)
Exchange realignment fE AR 1,684
As at 30 June 2021 R-B=-—FXA=t+H 9,650
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30 June 2021
ZEZ-FXA=1+H
15. LEASES 15. HE
The Group as a lessee EEBERABEA
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE .
The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the FR-HEEEZEAERTFAESH
movements during the year are as follows: AT
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
As at 1 July WtBA—H 19,275 31,003
Additions RE 1,747 487
Accretion of interest recognised during  F R E HERF]E
the year (note 8) ER(H158) 907 1,493
Payments ANES (13,443) (12,127)
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID-19t8FEFE & TR - (485)
Exchange realignment PE 5, A% 1,684 (1,096)
As at 30 June NAB=t+8 10,170 19,275
Analysed into: EI=
Current liabilities TENED 10,087 11,422
Non-current liabilities FEMENEDD 83 7,853
10,170 19,275

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note

32 to the financial statements.

HEREZIHBERD MNP BRE

FHREG2 8 -

(€) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) REZMRESERZSEIHIIWNT
leases are as follows:
2021 2020
—B--F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBREZFE 907 1,493
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEECITEER 11,570 12,635
Expense relating to short-term leases and 52 EAMHE R e T EAR
other leases with remaining lease terms NA=ZTHEARIER 2
ended on or before 30 June HAb A SAERERZ GTA
(included in administrative expenses)* TR A )* 3,193 3,102
Expenses relating to low-value assets KEEEEMRBRYX
(included in administrative expenses)* GTATTEHRE X R)* 23 6
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID-19tEF S T
(included in other income) (GTAEAUAR) - (485)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RiBR R AR 15,693 16,751

*

statements.

(d)

to the financial statements.
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Included in “lease payments not included in the *
measurement of lease liabilities” in note 7 to the financial

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 27(b)

ZME
FEET ©

(d)
27(0)HE -
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BA RS AR MR

30 June 2021

—E-—FXA=+AH
16. INTANGIBLE ASSET 16. B &EE

Club
membership
Benass
HK$'000
FET

At 1 July 2019, 30 June 2020, 1 July 2020 WZZE—hE+A—H ZZT-_TF,A=+H -
and 30 June 2021 —EEFLA—RBARE-_—FA=1+H 2,700

17

The Group has classified the acquired club membership as an
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life in accordance with
HKAS 38 Intangible Assets. This is supported by the fact that the
club membership has no expiry date and is expected to generate
future economic benefits to the Group indefinitely. The Group
re-evaluates the useful life of the club membership each year to
determine whether events or circumstances continue to support
the view of the indefinite useful life of the asset.

AEBERBEEA ST ERNERELE
ERRBNERLTeEIBEREREEME
REHNETEE - IWIRRNBXHBEE
WEEmAY  BERHARAREEES
BREEMS - ARESFEHTHEL
BEENERFY  UBEERETAEMHH
BREBXHZEERBSEEREY -

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE 17. A FEBEFT A BENSHE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS B

2021 2020

—E-—f —E-FF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Unlisted fund investment FELETELKRE 10,588 10,039

The above investment was classified as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss as its contractual cash flows are not
solely payments of principal and interest. The fair value of the
unlisted fund investment is determined by its net asset value
quoted by the investment administrator of the investment fund
with reference to the underlying assets of the fund.

HREMREZENRERENERAE
EMEMNAR  BERERBELSEAFE
B ABSENEREE - FLTESRKRE
MAFEERHKREEESHREEESR
RS ZHBEEENFEEEBEMRE
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B IS SRR M AL

SO Jume 2021
—E-—%XA=+H
18. INVENTORIES 18. F&
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials AR 28,203 8,580
Work in progress ERS 11,691 5,789
Finished goods BUAK T 27,185 10,016
67,079 24,385
19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 9. EZEWFIE
2021 2020
—E-—f —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables Z 5 el 18 81,930 61,922

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally one month, extending up
to three months for major customers. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a policy to manage
its risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

$‘$IEEE%T)E'E’J%%1I%WIEE§EN§%

cEEHBER—MEA  REZFERE=
ﬂﬂ(ﬁdﬁlx@?‘ﬁﬁ—) BEREPERR
SERE - AKRERHINAHE B REER
WORTBER BRI - WRBBERINE
BERER  BREHRESREEEEHNE
Bl o RNEE W R EE 5 E Y HIBERE
EEMERARKEMRESEEIA -85
FEYRIBTE R -

RBEBRR  REZRAH2IINEZE
WRIBERBREC DT AN T -

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$ ‘000

FET FET

Within 1 month —{E AR 41,296 33,350
1 to 2 months —EWEA 32,082 20,272
2 to 3 months IZE = 1E A 6,815 6,649
Over 3 months HBim=1E A 1,737 1,657
81,930 61,922
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9 which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. The expected credit loss for the Group’s trade
receivables is minimal.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivable as at the end of the
reporting period, based on payment due date, is as follows:

BA RS AR MR

30 June 2021
—E=—FXA=+H

19. E 5 W FIE (@)

REREAH  AREEAREGEEET
BESTAGERMEEEE - BHERE
REFBUBBRRANSERTF DA
RIRE IR ER - AT ERBR T BRI
R -BEEEHEELRNRE BHATESEH
BN BESEN - AT BRI RN
BFANGEREZEMN - —RM5 - BS
FEMSRIR B AR B — F R T LAME - B
TERRABFIITES -

AEBEEABOER BB BHREEAF
BRENBREEBRERE - L&
A EEZRYGARA2MERE
BEE - AEENEZRKFANEHRE
EEEMTRE -

RB|EMAR - REBAMAHZIINE SR
WRIRR) SRR DATLAT

2021 2020

—B--fF —ETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Current BIER 54,878 49,905
Less than 1 month DR1E A 22,801 8,782
1 to 3 months 123@A 2,680 1,857
Over 3 months HBiE3E A 1,571 1,378
81,930 61,922
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B IS SRR M AL

30 June 2021
T —FXA=+H

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

20. A RE - B R EMERRK

OTHER RECEIVABLES b= |
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT FET
Prepayments FEfT3RIE 27,492 11,453
Deposits and other receivables R REMEIFRIA 9,602 14,021
37,094 25,474
Less: Non-current prepayments and deposits & : JERBITEN IE R IR S (32,112 (17,181)
4,982 8,293

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits,
deposits with suppliers and third parties and value-added
tax recoverable. An impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by applying a loss rate approach with reference to
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted
to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The expected credit loss for the

Group’s deposits and other receivables is minimal.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and

past due amounts.

As at 30 June 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance was assessed

to be minimal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

BA RS AR MR

30 June 2021
—E=—FXA=+H

1. RS RBASEBYUARZRG

RESTRICTED CASH BHe
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT FET
Cash and bank balances B4 RIRITES 33,629 15,671
Time deposits EHFR 170,800 186,275
Wealth management products* 1P B EE - 2174
204,429 204,120
Less: Restricted cash for banking facilities B RITTRENZREIRE (919) =
Cash and cash equivalents HERRESZEY 203,510 204,120

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”)
amounted to HK$8,223,000 (2020: HK$6,507,000), which
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and eam interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and time deposits are deposited with a creditworthy bank with no
recent history of default.

In the prior year, the principal and interest amounts of the wealth
management products held were guaranteed. The Group used the
wealth management products primarily to enhance its return on
fixed deposits. The wealth management products were purchased
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earned interest at the respective short term time depostt rates. The
wealth management products were purchased from a creditworthy
bank with no recent history of default.

NBEBER > NREBUARE(TARE])
FHEMRE RIFEEEYAS,223,000% T
(ZE -4 : 6,507,000/87T) * TEHEH
HiaAEMEE - KM RIEFSBEABIN
EEEEOIAREE  SERNESER
E o AEEMRBFEETINEERAR
TEARERIGAEMER o

RITHASRENBARTHERMNERZH
F R ERERA B - 2 HE BERTRNF—
BER=AANIBNRFE(RFAKE
MEIRIREHFR) - WIRAENERERE
R RBRERA B - RITERRESRERT
EREE R B ST BRIV IRTT

* RNEFE  FBEBEYERNAEENES
HMOEER AEECRAEBEMERDEE
RESHBEEFRER - FEBENIEHTE
MOBRENF-BEZEATE  /RFK
SENRRESFEME - WIRAHEH
EHEAFERBMAE - AEEEEER
R IR KEEENRITREEME

o
an °
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B IS SRR M AL

30 June 2021
T —FXA=+H

22. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

22. ES5 ENRIE

RBEMR  REZZAHEIINEZE

NRBERRE DT T

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —RAR 20,779 9,796
1 to 2 months —EWEA 7,128 5,033
2 to 3 months MZE=1EA 934 951
Over 3 months HBE={EA 83 170
28,924 15,950

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally BSEMNZKERTERBETNR=AARNE
settled within three months. i o

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HttENREREFER

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

HtaE FET FET

Other payables H fth FE < 5RI8 (@) 307 234

Contract liabilities AHBE (b) 1,089 3,503

Accruals ezt & 35,446 27,287

36,842 31,024

(@)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average (@ EHEMENRETTERFLHSERE M
term of one month. A

(o)  Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to b) AHEEBREIMNERMMKEMNEEHR

R B —FR-_ZB-_BELANBER
LM EEARRERBEERAE
FUERY B BB FUR A 1N -

deliver products. The decrease/increase in contract liabilities
in 2021 and 2020 was mainly due to the decrease/increase
in short-term advances received from customers in relation to
the sale of products at the end of the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R R Y o

30 June 2021

—E-—FRA=TH
24. DEFERRED TAX 24. EEBIE
The movements of the deferred tax assets and liability during the FAREHREEELBENERUOT
year are as follows:
Deferred tax assets EEHIEEE
Lease
Provisions liabilities Others Total
BiE HEEE Hity Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FET FET FET
At 1 July 2019 RZF-NFLA—H = = 149 149
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss 5+ AF RIS IEE
during the year (note 11) BB (HfaE11) 3,286 378 43 3,707
Exchange realignment fE N AR (79) t¢) - 83
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020  R-ZE-TEXA
=TARZE-FTF
+HA—H 3,211 370 192 3,773
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to A (BE)ER
profit or loss during the year BRMETHE
(note 11) (Btaz11) 984 (277) (177) 530
Exchange realignment IE 7 357 27 - 384
At 30 June 2021 R-ZZE=_—%<A
=+H 4,552 120 15 4,687
Deferred tax liability EERIEAE
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of
related
depreciation
BHEETE
WiTERE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 July 2019 RZZ—-NF+EHA—H 130
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during the year HAFENBREINEERHRBE(HE11)
(note 11) 62)
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 RZZEZTFSA=+HE
—E-TF+A—H 68
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during the year FTAFAEERRERIE(fF11)
(note 11) (63)
At 30 June 2021 RZZ=Z—F,A=+H 5
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R B EE

SOJUHGZOQW
—E-—%XA=+H

24.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liability (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to eamnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of eamings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 30 June 2021, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such eamings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with investments in the
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised totalled approximately HK$3,267,000

24, EERIE (&)

EEFIBEEE#)
BERBECEFERE  SRTEFRE
B R TSR N E B ¥ MNEIRE B A
B 10%TEMBS - R ER _TT/N\F—
A—BRER BRAR-ZEtFE+-A
S+—HZENERF - i BREEINT
BEEMEEER 2 AT ARBEELY - 8l
BRAMENREL AR - hAEE - B
AR E A% - At AEBELZERPE
MR MR BARR - EENFE—F—
B E £ MR FIFTR RS BATEME -

RZZEZ—F"A=1+8 BMERELEE
A HR B P 3 T A% PR BB X R SR BE A R (B
TEF0H) M FES B RERELERIIE - E5
RAE ﬁéﬁfﬁﬁ%% ' %Z%MT%“?T\KT
REREBEAT - —FEXRNA=T
A ﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁnuaﬁkmlﬁéﬁmqﬂlmmﬁ
BAABIKREMIRNEREZBBEESTA
493,267,000t (Z T =Z 4 : 3,155,000
BIT) °

_7_

(2020: HK$3,155,000) as at 30 June 2021.

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. R4
2021 2020
= g: - $ S ?
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Authorised: ETE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,0008%
of HK$0.01 each BREE0.O1TBITAEBAR 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRHT -
480,000,000 ordinary shares 480,000,0008%
of HK$0.01 each BREEO.O1E AL B 4,800 4,800
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(a) Share premium
The share premium represents the difference between the
par value of the shares issued and the consideration paid
for the reorganisation, the capitalisation issue and the initial
public offering.

(b) Other reserve
The balance of the other reserve represents the difference
between the aggregate of the paid-up share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor
pursuant to the reorganisation undergone by the Group.

(c) Exchange fluctuation reserve
The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all relevant
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations.

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities

BA RS AR MR

30 June 2021
—ET—FXA=1+H

26. F#iE
$EIF$¢F&ﬂ&¢Fm%%&%%
B HE2 NG A ERBBHEN -

(a) BHimE
B EEREHTRONEAGERE
B BMEBTRERARRERS
MREZ R EHE -

(b) Eftfe
REAEEOER - Kb EEHIE
ERBHEARZHRRARERL
RABRBZEBRATD HITRAZ
EEZ = -

(c) BERREHFE
[ 5 B B R IR IR B OB 75 B 75
WEMELEMATERBER =5 -
27. REBRERERME

(a) MEFBFRELENEEZE

Lease

liabilities

HEaE

HK$'000

FET

At 1 July 2019 —NF+HA—H 31,003

Changes from financing cash flows BERCRELE (10,634)

New leases SHE 487

COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID-19tE < iRk (485)

Exchange realignment PE 58 (1,096)

Interest expense FEXZH 1,498

Interest paid classified as operating cash flows DERICEFHRER2EMNFIE (1,493)
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 RZZEZFFAA=1THEK

RZZE-_ZTF+H—H 19,275

Changes from financing cash flows BRERSRELE (12,536)

New leases g 1,747

Exchange realignment FE o 1,684

Interest expenses FEZH 907

Interest paid classified as operating cash flows DEAKETHRERZEMFE (907)

At 30 June 2021 RZZT=——FA=+H 10,170
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B IS SRR M AL

30 June 2021
T —FXA=+H

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows:

27. ZEEERERK T @)

(b) HEZRERHAE

FARERREENEEZRERE

MRERETINT

2021 2020
—B-—-F —EC-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT FHET
Within operating activities e EE A 4,123 4,601
Within financing activities BhE RS A 12,536 10,634
16,659 15,235
28. COMMITMENTS 28. EiE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of RIEHR - AEEEUTEARIE :
the reporting period:
2021 2020
—B-—F —EC-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT FET
Contracted, but not provided for: DETAVB R B -
Plant and machinery B 20,658 377
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R R Y o

30 June 2021

—E_—FA=1H
29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. AR S

(@  In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these @ BTUBRREMIDOMAFLNRS
financial statements, the Group had the following material N REBRFANBAT@E S &

transactions with related parties during the year: ARG
2021 2020
it —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Rental expenses paid to related companies 15 F Al A R EFH X 2,586 2,586
Rental expense paid to a related party YT EERY 408 408

The rental expenses were paid based on tenancy
agreements entered into between a subsidiary of the

HER TR B A S T8 1 7] 2208
BB/ BB UNEEREX

Group and related companies/a related party. ff o
Compensation of key management personnel of the (o) AEBEEEIEASMEHHN
Group
2021 2020
—EBZ—fF T T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Salaries and other short-term FehEMEHESEF
employee benefits 23,369 22,038
Pension scheme contributions ERE R EIER 35 36
Total compensation paid to YRFEEEEABREMNERE
key management personnel 23,404 22,074

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive's

statements.

BRESRITRARFNNE — &
emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial [SE ISR EHTEFO -
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B IS SRR M AL

30 June 2021
T —FXA=+H

CATEGORY

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
statements as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

30. RERIETHEMTA

EMBHRRERI N REHRNEEENT ¢

As at 30 June 2021 RZTEZ—FA=1+H
Financial Financial
asset at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
RATEER R R A
BRARN SR
cWMEE cTREE wst
Mandatorily
designated
as such
B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT FHT FHT
Financial asset at fair value through  #E A FEET ABZEA
profit or loss TREE 10,588 - 10,588
Trade receivables =) 16N - 81,930 81,930
Financial assets included in FTAENMNRE  EZe Rk
prepayments, deposits and other o th FE USRI B9
receivables TREE - 9,602 9,602
Restricted cash RBRHIHE - 919 919
Cash and cash equivalents WERREEEY - 203,510 203,510
10,588 295,961 306,549
As at 30 June 2020 R-ZE-_ZTFA=1H
Financial Financial
asset at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BATEER R AR
B ARS HIIRREY
TRUEE TRIEE st
Mandatorily
designated
as such
S8 E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT T
Financial asset at fair value through 1R A FE(BEET AEBZH
profit or loss SREE 10,039 - 10,039
Trade receivables 2 5 EWGRIE - 61,922 61,922
Financial assets included in SATEMNFOE  BER
prepayments, deposits and other H it fE W S IB R
receivables SREE - 14,021 14,021
Cash and cash equivalents B NEEEED - 204,120 204,120
10,039 280,063 290,102
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

31.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R R Y o

CATEGORY (Continued)

30 June 2021

—E-—FXA=+AH

30. RERE SNSRI Em)

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost

RBERAIRENESREE

2021 2020

—E—— —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade payables B S IE 28,924 15,950
Financial liabilities included in other sTARMEA AR EETE AN

payables and accruals CA= =N 12,012 10,045

Lease liabilities HEaE 10,170 19,275

51,106 45,270

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group's financial asset at fair value through profit or loss was

carried at fair value.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, trade receivables, trade payables,
lease liabilities, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables and financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these

instruments.

The fair values of non-current deposits have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities, and were assessed to approximate to their

carrying amounts.

The fair value of the unlisted fund investment is determined by its
net asset values quoted by the investment administrator of the
investment fund with reference to the underlying assets of the

funds.

B

IARFAEDER »

W fhFHEEREERS

EEETIRE °

1. €I ENATFERAFESE

AEBBRAFEEFARENEHEE

BEREENG ReRBREEFEY  XRB
HERE  BHREREFE  EFEMNFKE -
HE&E  BARE - B MEMEKK
HANTMEEAREMENFR - Bt
ERANEZRAE A TEEREKREER
5 HEEHRZETAINBHABREMN

FERBIFROR T EIRERES BELEE
B EERRNAGTEHARNTE B A
ARMMEFEBERRRASRESE -

FITEEGRENATEESERERLS
MEBREEEERIESZHBEENFE
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B IS SRR M AL

30 June 2021
T —FXA=+H

31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Asset measured at fair value:
As at 30 June 2021

BS1.EMTENAFERLAFEESE

B

AFEEE
TEBERAEESMT AN AT ES 25
# -

BRAVEHBHEE

RZEZ—F-A=1+H

Fair value measurement using

AT {EHERA

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
TEIR BEAUEHE BEAFTIUEE
iH|E W AE BWAE
(%5—FE) (5=fE) (5=F8) Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FETT FHET FAETT
Financial asset at fair value A F(BE
through profit or loss T AEER
TRIEE - - 10,588 10,588
Asset measured at fair value: BRAFEFENEE
As at 30 June 2020 RZZE_ZFRA="TH
Fair value measurement using
NP ERERA
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E R BAAEHE BRFIAHEER
TimHRE #BAE BAE
(B—/E) (F=E) (B=fE) FoE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FAET FAET
Financial asset at fair value A F(BE
through profit or loss S ABER
TRIEE = 10,039 = 10,039
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31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

32

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during

the year are as follows:

31.

BA RS AR MR

30 June 2021
—ET—FXA=1+H

EMIEAENAFEERLAFEESE
B

D ERE @)
FR - EEERATEESBZEBMT

2021 2020

—EB-—F —TEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

At 1 July RntA—H - -
Transferred from Level 2 BHE_EHREA 10,039 -
Total gains recognised in profit or loss RIBEER WS BTE 549 =
At 30 June RANA=+H 10,588 =

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair

value as at 30 June 2021 and 2020.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and a financial
asset of HK$10,039,000 was transferred from Level 2 into
Level 3 since the financial asset was purchased by the Group
in the prior year and the investment cost approximated to the
fair value was based on the net asset values quoted by the
investment administrator of the investment fund with reference
to the underlying assets of the funds. In the current year, the
Group did not make further investment and the fair value of the
financial asset was based on the net asset values quoted by the
investment administrator of the investment fund with reference to
the underlying assets of the funds. There were no transfers into or

out of Level 3 for financial liabilities.

In the prior year, there were no transfers into or out of Level 3 for

both financial assets and financial liabilities.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments include a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss, trade and other
receivables, deposits, trade and other payables, lease liabilities,
restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the

Group’s operations.

32.

R-BE-_—EFER_ZT-_FFA=+H"
AEBBETAEATEFEZERMEAE -

FR F-RE_EBAVFEEFEZMIL
EmER o S %E510,089,0007 7T H & @
BEAF-_BEAEZ=E daRA£ER
FTFEREZEREER  BREXEAZN
W EESNINEEREERNES 2 AR
BEEMFEEBEMATE - AFE A%
BEWHmE—FESE  mMzemiEE2RAT
BERUREESNREEEERIHES
ZHEBEEMNFEEBAEMAE - BIES
MAEESASEEESE -

REFE BECTNEREEREBAR
BASBLEE=E -

MEEREEBFERBER

AEEXENSHITABRERAFE AT
ABSHNEREE - BEH REMERNK
BHoRe  BHREMENFOR  HEA
B XRFBEUARRERASEEY -
ZEETRTANIZENAEEAKER
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continvec)

Itis, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group’s
policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be untaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has foreign currency exposures, which mainly arise
from monetary assets and liabilities held in currencies other than
the Hong Kong dollar. The Group currently has no particular
hedging vehicles to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.
The Group periodically reviews monetary assets and liabilities
held in currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar to ensure that
net exposure is kept at an acceptable level.

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group
does not expect any significant movement in the USD and HK$
exchange rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the RMB exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities) and the Company’s equity (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

2. KEKREEBE

= R BCR (@)

REFELBEFEA  AEBEZBRR TR
EERMTACZEE  MUETAE—ERX -

ZIK‘E@%E?IEFEE’JEEHA?%MEEL

;ff //\uibﬁ'féﬂ R ° %@%
Eﬁ&‘rﬁ%mﬁ%ﬁ B2 X IR S AR B HUR
HgtamT -

SEE LB

AEBEEIINERR - TERBABITITIA
IEBHENEREERAE - AKHEE
R EERFE S TRAE DI E AR -
AEEETERRITNETAINEERER
EREEREE  BEAENFERER
RAMESIKF o

MR ETIEREXTHE  FithRNEEE
BETLBTEX TG HRERNEAND -

TREMAHPRARBEZNSE AL #
8 RATEHMEBBRETENBRLT -
HAKBENHEARNOBHAES (ARE
BEERABZAFEED) RAAR#EE
(HREBEERBBZATEES) K
BEDHT °

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in rate before tax in equity*
Ex BB A% R e
ER(FB)  #m/GHd)  #i/(R)*

% HK$'000 HK$'000

FHAT FAT
As at 30 June 2021 RZEZ—FA=1H

If HK$ weakens against RMB BT ARBEE 5 3,527 -

If HKS strengthens against RMB i3 7T 35 A R FHE (5) (3,527) -
As at 30 June 2020 RZZE_ZFRA=1H

If HK$ weakens against RMB B TR AREERE 5 (704) =

If HKS strengthens against RMB {58 7T 35 A REFHE ) 704 -

*

Excluding retained profits
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that only well-established
customers will be considered for open account terms and the
approval of credit terms is subject to stringent credit check
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 30 June. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 30 June 2021

BA RS AR MR

30 June 2021

—E-—FA=1+H
2. iR REEEEREE®)
FERR
AEBERTRT  FRRGOE=FR
5o REENREAEHFELEANER
EEREEXAEERNIE AN RS

SERERF - W

FE W A

EE WIS A

ERRAEENERRRT TEX -

& E B & R By
TRINFERAEBECEERRNEEER

Ko P T B B0 %

S ERAR

CHEEERE

HEH (BRIFEFMNLBERARE N
ESEMER) RRANA=TRNFRER
"*E?zm iR rReREENKRE

#IE -

R-ZZBE-_—FX<A=+H

12-month Lifetime
expected expected
credit losses credit losses
1218 B 2
BHEESE BHGEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
P B 1 f&1bx st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET
Trade receivables* B 5l soE” - 81,930 81,930
Financial assets included in EH\TEH RIE - e R
prepayments, deposits and HAth JE UK SR IE RO
other receivables CRIEE
— Normal*™* —1EE* 9,602 - 9,602
Restricted cash ZRHIRE
— Not yet past due — AR mEA 919 - 919
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEZEY
— Not yet past due — M AR EA 203,510 - 203,510
214,031 81,930 295,961
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30 June 2021
T —FXA=+H

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 30 June 2020

32. iIEREEEERBE @)

EER B &)
BERRRERKR(E)

R-B-ZEFXA=1+H

12-month Lifetime
expected expected
credit losses credit losses
1218 A4 2H
FHEEESER TEHEEES
Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
B ER 1 k(97 “Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FHET
Trade receivables* B 5 FoE" - 61,922 61,922
Financial assets included in SFAFER A - e &
prepayments, deposits and H At FEIGRIE Y
other receivables CRMEE
— Normal*™ —IE&E* 14,021 - 14,021
Cash and cash equivalents BeRRE&EEY
— Not yet past due — MAREEA 204,120 - 204,120
218,141 61,922 280,063
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified . BAKERAGCEEERENE 5B

approach for impairment, the expected credit loss for the Group’s
trade receivables is minimal as disclosed in note 19 to the financial
statements.

. The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables is considered to be ‘normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

164 SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED 37 %2 EJ Jall 22 i% /5 PR A 7]

FRME - ARENE S ERFIAN TSR
EEEBEBRMARE  WRERMBREM

19

o BEPARMFUR - RE K E M ERRIER
EREAEYEANAMEENRASH
AENERRRB VS ERLEEREEN
B HEHEEEARRARILER] BRI &
BMEAEMNEELDRWRS [F5] -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of funds generated from
operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

BA RS AR MR

30 June 2021
—ET—FXA=1+H

32. iIEREEEERBE @)
REE SRR

AEBENERABECREERSESR -
KBS Z AL REEE 2 FRGFE -

AEBERHRERRER S ORTRAT A
TRBEIHERAT

3 to less
Less than than 12 1to5
On demand 3 months months years Total
3Z12{8A
RER DH3EA 9N 1255 wat
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET T T
2021 —E--F
Trade payables Rl AR eE 20,780 8,061 83 - 28,924
Financial liabilities included in 51 A E ffy fE < 308 K2
other payables and accruals  EETERARES R AR - 5,757 6,255 - 12,012
Lease liabilties HEBE - 3,434 6,910 84 10,428
20,780 17,252 13,248 84 51,364
2020 —EEE
Trade payables B HEN7E 9,796 5,984 170 = 15,950
Financial liabilities included in - &+ A E i F& £ 208 K&
other payables and accruals  EETERHES R AR - 5,478 4,567 - 10,045
Lease liablities HERE - 3,837 8,421 8,061 20,319
9,796 15,299 13,158 8,061 46,314
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30 June 2021
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. K EREREBFERBKR @)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders and retum capital to shareholders. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 30 June 2021 and
2020.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
trade payables, other payables and accruals and lease liabilities
less cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents the equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The gearing ratios as at
the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

AEXER
AEEETEAEREEEEREASLE
R REE  URBRRIEHERL AR
EMEAREBAREESRA -

AEETRHEEARLE R FEESEMRRE
BFH AR - BEFIABRERER &K
SEAESHABRKN FRENBRESER
MRRERNER -HE_T-_—FR_F
—ZEFEAXAZ+TBHLEE  BEEEANE
2 BRI EEREE -

AEEFEREERBLXRCFHEBRAEAR
WHEB)EREAR - FHEBREEHEN
HE - HitENFBEREGFEAMEER
B BRERERRESEEY - EAEAR
AEEARGEZ RBEMRNEER
BT

2021 2020

it —EEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Trade payables 2B S ENAIA 28,924 15,950
Other payables and accruals HihENFIENETER 36,842 31,024
Lease liabilities HE&BE 10,170 19,275
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERBEEEY (203,510) (204,120)
Net debt FETS (127,574) (137,871)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company  ZxA Bl A A FE(L#E 25 385,278 323,117
Capital and net debt BAR SR ES 257,704 185,246
Gearing ratio BEABHE N/A ~EH N/A 73
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33.

34.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 6 September 2021, BRMAFEN(FIM)BR2AF], an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, BN ETEE RS & A &
BBRAF], the landlord, and Mr. Chen Zhencheng, the guarantor,
entered into a provisional tenancy agreement in respect of the
leasing of a factory in Huizhou (“Huizhou Factory Leasing”) for a
term of ten years tentatively commencing from 18 September
2021 to 17 September 2031. The commencement of the
Huizhou Factory Leasing is subject to the execution of the formal
tenancy agreement. For details of the transaction, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 6 September 2021
and 17 September 2021,

BA RS AR MR

30 June 2021
—ET—FXA=1+H

33. {EHEEE

RZZE-_—FNAXE  RAZHEME
RAR(BARTNEELENBAR) - &
MNTHERBERMAERAB(EREE) KR
B E(EAREAN)RBAAEMNRE ([E
MEERE DT REHEH:  APET
At+F AZEZ—FhA+N\BRE=ZF
Z—FAAT+tHIL - BENBEHEEEFR
T IEREEWHEE - HERG c BEXSH
& B2HARAEEMAZE—F AN
ARZZEZ—FNATEHHRM -

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 34. KA RIBEARRE
OF THE COMPANY
2021 2020
it —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EHB AR Z&E 334,059 334,059
Financial asset at fair value through BAFEESAEBEN
profit or loss EREE 10,588 10,039
Total non-current assets IEMBNEEBE 344,647 344,098
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivable H A e U R IE 125 -
Amount due from subsidiaries R B A R FRIE 140,420 140,420
Bank balance IRITEER 490 115
Total current assets MENEEBE 141,035 140,535
Net assets BEFE 485,682 484,633
EQUITY ER
Share capital &N 4,800 4,800
Reserves (note) (K aE) 480,882 479,833
Total equity AR 485,682 484,633

167



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R B EE

30 June 2021
T —FXA=+H

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 34. &2 5] B %Ak R & (4a)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: Hiat -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RAREERENT -
Retained
profits/
(accumulated
Share premium loss) Total
REERR
R RE (R&5tE#R) “st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FETL FET
At 1 July 2019 R=_ZE—h&FtA—H 479,712 (77) 479,635
Profit and total comprehensive income FREMNREE LT
for the year 16,998 16,998
Final dividend for 2019 ZE-NFRPRKRE - (12,000) (12,000)
Interim dividend for 2020 T TEREBRE = (4,800) (4,800)
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 RIZE-ZFEA=1+HK
—ZE_THF+H-H 479,712 121 479,833
Profit and total comprehensive income FNHH REEREEEE
for the year - 25,049 25,049
Final dividend for 2020 —TTEREKRE - (16,800) (16,800)
Interim dividend for 2021 T —FHEBRE - (7,200) (7,200)
At 30 June 2021 R-ZZE-_—F,A=1+H 479,712 1,170 480,882
35. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 35. #{tEMKRE
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue MEBRERER-_ZE_—FNLAZTNLEE
by the board of directors on 29 September 2021. g ERIIETE -
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